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World presence

The Rothschild banking group has 57 offices in 45 countries and employs over 2,800 people around the world Through its network
of subsicharies and affiliates, the Group prowides global financial advisory; banking and treasury, merchant banking, and wealth

management services 1o govemments, corporations and indmduals worldwide

North America

Calgary
Mexico City
: Montréal
New York
Toronto
Washington

Europe and The Middle East
Abu Dhabs Doha Lisbon
Amsterdam Dubai London
Athens Frankfurt Luxembourg
Barcelona Geneva Madrid
Birmingham Guernsey Manchester
Brussels Istanbul Milan
Bucharest Kiev Maoscow
Budapest Leeds Pars
South America | Africa Asia Pacific
Santiago Harare Auckland
S3o Paulo Johannesburg Beyng
Hano
Hong Kong
Jakarta
Kuala Lumpur
Manila
Melbourne
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Prague
Rome
Sofia
Stockholm
Tel Aviv
Warsaw
Zurich

Mumbai
New Delh
Secul
Shanghai
Singapore
Sydney
Tokyo
Wellingtan




Directors

Chairman
Dawd de Rothschild

Deputy Chairman

Anthony Alt

Executive Directors

Andrew Didham Anthony Salz

Non-Executive Directors
Daniel Bouton Enc de Rothschild
Peter Smith Mark Evans

N M Rothschdd & Sons Limited | Registered Mumber 925279 | Page S



Chairman’s statement

Last year, § commented that it was very difficult to state with

any degree of certanty that the economic cnsis 1s behund us.
Unfortunately | was correct The encouraging signs that were seen
n the first half of 2011 were soon replaced with further cancerns
over the impact of the eurczone troubles on the global economy
These concerns have continued into 2012 and the economic
outlook, for the eurozone n partcular, remains uncertain

While the econormic cimate has mpacted the resufts of the Group
we contnue to perform well and have been less affected than
many in our sector We continue to improve our market position,
which with the continued maintenance of high levels of hquidity and
capital strength stands us in good stead for the future

In early Apnl 2012 1 announced that Pans Orléans, the holding
company of the Rothschild group, was reorganising and simplifying
its structure The reorganisation was approved by Pans Oriéans’
shareholders in june As a result Pans Criéans acquired all the
shares in the Pans business of Rothschild & Cie Bangue not
currently owned and brought under s ownership substantialty
all the shares in Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG (N M
Rothschitd & Sans Limiteds (' NMR™) Swass parent compary)
At the same tme, Paris Orléans converted into a French imited
partnership which ensures the commitment and control of the
Rothschild family over the long term, both comerstones of the
Group's cutture ang competitive postioning.

To achieve this significant change 1o our structure i the current
dimate highlights the degree of support that exists from both the
Rethschild famwly and the non-famity shareholders. These changes
pravide a simplfied organisational structure that will foster
Increased operatonal efficiency in the Groups busnesses They
also prowde a significantly enhanced group regfatory caprtal
postion in the face of stringent Basel Ill regulatory requirements

These changes provide a strong base for the Group to

move ferward This includes the NMR group which, n 2011,
continued to develop its fund managerment actwvities through
the acquisition of Elgn Caprtal, an estabhshed CLO manager,
bringing the amount of assets under the Group's management
to some £2 billon The Banking business continues to buld the
Five Arrows Leasing business which unfailingly delivers a robust
performance with good margin income and continuing low
levels of impairment. The commercial loan business, pnmarily 1n
commercial property and leveraged finance sectors, continues
to contract as part of our planned and long term withdrawa!
from this part of the Banking business

Qur Global Financial Adwsory business has not been immune
from the worlds economic troubles but continues to prove that
sts mode! 1s the nght one of providing imparual, expert advice
to corporations governments, instituttons and indivduals. We
consistently delwer the highest quality advice with discretion,
integrity and insight in the areas of M&A and sirategic advisory
along with financing adwisory This formula continues 1o win
over chents — globally s 201 | we ranked sixth by number of
completed deals (up from seventh in 2010) and achieved top
ten posrtions 1n most of our key markets

The confidence we have always had in the long term future of
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our business was reflected in our decision in 2007 to develop
our new London head cffice bulding The new buiiding at “New
Court”, which has become something of a landmark in the City
of London, was occupied in mud 201 | on time and on budget [t
15 providing much inproved client meeting facilies and working
condrions for our staff

| have to report with great sadness that rmy cousin Leopold de
Rothschild passed away in Apnl this year Leo was a wonderful,
generous man who contnbuted to NMR and to other
Organisaions In SO marty ways, Incuding sitting as a director

of the Bank of England His life spans an era of extraordinary
change at NMR, he was one of very few people to have worked
in three incarmations of New Court. Leo was heavily involved

in establishing our South American offices as well as bringing
together a number of continental firms wath links to Rothschitd
He was always very committed o the welfare of our staff, and his
dedicabon to our pensioners over the years has been unfaling
This 15 his damend jubiee year at NMR.

Finally, | should like to thank my fellow directors and all our staff
for their hard work and professionalism over the {ast year in
what are testing times

David de Rothschild
24 July 2012



Business review

Financial review

N M Rathschild & Sons Limited has been a leading name in the
Lenden financial markets since 1798, provading a comprehensive
range of advisory services to s clients alongside debt fund
management and speciahsed lending The Company 1s the
largest entity within the Rothschitd bankng group, which has a
presence in 45 countries around the world and continues to be
controlled by the Rothschild family via Pans Crléans, the French
listed holding company

The principal subsidiaries consolidated by the N M Rothschild
& Sons Limited Group are Rothschild Europe BV and
Rothschiid Australia Limited, which provide financial advisory
services overseas, and Five Arrows Finance, a UK-based asset
financing group

Results overview

The latter part of 201 | was again an extremely turbulent tme
as markets focussed on the troubles in the eurozone In the light
of market conditions, the Group s profit after tax for the year of
£24 6 milhon was satisfactory

Income

Total fee and commussion income earned from clents fell by

8% to £3550 million as would be expected given the reduction
in global deal actvity M&A fees were margnally up on the

year at £259 8 milhion (2011 £254 1 millon) However other
financiat adwsory fees which include fees from debt adwisory
and restructunng, and equrty adwsory, dechned to £75 4 million
(201} £1097 millon) The revenue mox of the Global Financial
Adwisory business continues to be well dversified by sector, with
no dependence on a small number of engagements or clients.

Net interest income decreased marginally to £17 4 milion
reflecting the contnued reduction n legacy commercial lending

Other operating income, which includes operating lease income,
rental income and dwidend income increased by 20% to £199
million largely as a result of gains on the disposal of available-for-
sale securities

Impairment losses of £12 8 milion were up compared to the
prior year, as would be expected given the market conditions n
the latter part of the year
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Expenses

Total operating expenses fell £236 mithon (7%) to £320 3 milion
Staff costs account for £2519 million (79%) of total operating
expenses (2011 £2748 million or 80%) and include profit share
payments which have fallen reflecting the performance of the
Groups businesses. This continues to prowvde a significant degree
of flexibility in the cost base Administrative expenses were
margnally down on the prior year which reflects the on-going
focus on cost control

Tax

The Group's tax charge for the year was £103 million,
compared with a charge of £156 million in the prior year

Balance sheet

Total assets of the Group were £2,2850 million at 31 March
2012 a reduction of £539 6 milhon {19%) compared to the
prior year end This 1s due to further reduciions in the legacy
commercial loan book, following the strategic deision to reduce
commercial lending expesures Alongside this, the Group has
repaid €350 mithon of MTN's and part of the first Rothschitd
Reserve term retall deposit effering

Total shareholders’ equity attnbutable to ordinary sharehalders
reduced by £68 5 mullion (16%), to £353 6 million, largely due
to actuarial losses on defined benefit pension schemes through
reserves of £499 milion (after tax) and dwidends paid of
£180 mihon In common with most defined benefit pension
schemes, the increased defict was driven by fatling gilt yvields

A reconciiation of movements in total shareholders' equity 15
provided in the consoldated accounts on page 27




Business review (continued)

Asset quality, funding
and liuidity

Summarised balance sheet

012 2011
£m £m
Assets
Prme hquid assets 686 852
Other iquid assets 222 552
Total hquid assets 908 1,404
Customer loans 818 881
Other asse‘f; ) ) - 559 ) 54—-0—
Total assets 2,285 2,825
Labiliues
Bank deposits o } 178 176
Customner dERO;ItS i 1,086 1,235
Dei)t SECUrties In Issue 142 461
Other liabilities 382 388
Total leabilittes | 788 2260
Equity 497— S 565"
Total equity and habilines 1,285 2,825

During the year total loans and advances to custormers reduced
by 7% to £818 milhon The portfolic of loan assets, which 1s
secured on a wide range of collateral types and well diversified
by sector includes commercial property finance leveraged
finance natural resources, niche asset finance and private client
lending The Banking team continues to perform a rigorous
process of credit analysis for each indmndual exposure at
inception and i subsequent monrtoring Impaired loans at

31 March 2012 represented | 8% of loans and advances

(2011 1196) with provision coverage of 48% (2011 68%)

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk s further analysed in note
22 to the financial statements

The Group continues to employ a conservatrve approach to
hquidity managernent. Around 40% of total assets are held

in ligqurd form, wath the majority of this held with the Bank of
England or in UK Government Secunties The Group has no
exposure 1o the weaker Eurozone governments

Funding 1s focused on the highly successful Rothschild Reserve
retall depostt programme augmented by relatonship deposits
from corporate, institutional and other deposiiors to ensure
sufficient dversity Customer deposits were £1,086 mullion at
31 March 2012, representing 48% of total equity and habilities
The Groups loans to custorners are entirely funded by
customer deposits

Regulatory capital
and liquidity

Since the onset of the ¢nsis in financial markets in 2007, the
Group has continued to focus on conservatively managing 1ts
Iiquidity and caprtal The risk asset ratic was 20 3% at 31 March
2012 (31 March 2011 207%) and the overall leverage ratio of
assets (excluding hquid assets) to equity 1s only 3 times

The Company 1s in full compliance with the FSA's requirements
Funding and hquidity policies are based on the Basel 3 approach
and reflect the Groug's low appetite for iquidity nsk. The Group
remaned significantly in surplus to regulatory and internal
Iiquidity guidelines throughout the year
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Business review (continued)

Operating Divisions

Global Financial Advisory*

Overview

Our Global Financral Advisory business provides impartal,
expert advice to corparations, governments, institutions
and indwiduals

We deliver the highest quality advice with discretion, integrity
and insight in the areas of M&A and strategic advisory, and
financing advisory

With approaching 1,000 adwsers based in over 40 countnes,
our scale, reach, intellectual captal and local knowlecge enable
us to develop relationships and deliver effective solutions to
support our chents, wherever their business takes them Dunng
the year we have made a number of significant hires at Board
level, senior adwiser level and across the dwisions

Desprte the tough business emvironment and continuing
economic uncertainty we have continued to remain resihent
and adwised on around 500 transactions globally in 2011 with a
value totalling over US$400bn

Rothschild’s objectivity, its global
network, and its commitment to
a relationship-driven approach,
combine to create value for our
clients; building value through
stability, integrity, and creativity
Capital structure access to funding and iquidity remain high
prioribies for our clients in the current environment We

continue to strengthen aur position across the finanaing
adwisory spectrum to support this need

We are uniguely positioned to leverage oppertunities in the
market with our global network, spread of businesses and
reputation far gving robust impartial advice

Cur values are at the root of our culture and define our client
offening We distinguish ourselves from our competitors in the
following respects

»  Focused on clients - Nothing gets in the way of our
irmpartial advice for each and every client.We sell nothing
but the best advice and execution capabilties

= Expert - Senior bankers lead every assignment from start
to fimish We advise on more deals than any other adviser,
including many of the most complex and transformatonal
assignments in the world All Rothschild clients benefit
from our collective intellectual captal, specialist sector and
product expertise and wealth of experience

w  Informed - We combine global scale with deep local
networks With approaching | 000 adwisers on the ground
around the world, we are well placed to help chents,
wherever their business takes them

= Long term - As a family controlled business, we are
unconstrained by short-term thinking and quarterfy
reporting We can take a long-term view to deliver each
client’s interests

®  Trusted & independent - We know that long-lasting
relationstups depend on the quality of our advice, we care
about our clents' success as much as they do The scale of our
business means that we are not dependent on the outcome
of any one transaction We are only as good as our last
assignment, this has been true for more than 200 years

*The Globat Financiol Advisory business 1s managed on o globol bosis ond hence the commentary refers ta the global business
However, references to specific deols dre only those that have been undertaken by the Company or its subsidianes
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Business review (continued)

M&A and strategic advisory
review of the year

Rothschild provides the highest quality M&A adwvice and
execution expertise

We are adviser of choice to both large and mid-cap corporates,
governments, families and indmduals worldwide We are also
one of the leading adwvisers to financial sponsors worldwide
forming long-term relationships to understand their needs

We have an unparalleled track record, advising on more deals
than any other adviser in Europe for the past ten years

We have built this global success through

s Qur unbiased, objective adwice, free from conflicts and
cross-seting

s Qur trusted partnerships with clients, using our global
perspective and depth of industry expertise to help achieve
their leng-term objectives

= Our global presence, bringng in-depth insight to complex
cross-border transactions across world markets, and
supenor expertise in gomestic markets

»  Qurintegrated global network of industry sector speciatists,
pooling knowledge from across local markets

s Our extensive experience in bid defences joint ventures
and strategic allances, de-mergers and spin-offs, and
fairness opinions

We also have specialists in areas including corperate
governance, privatisation programenes, pension funds and board
committee advice

Globally n 201 | we ranked sixth by number of completed deals,
and achieved top ten positions in most of our key markets.

We held top 5 postisons for M&A advice in the consumer
products, hotels & leisure, infrastructure, property, media
telecoms transport ang utlities sectors

Rothschild M&A 2011 league table
rankings by geography

Rank by  Rank by

Country/Region number value

Worldwde 6
Worldwide Cross Border 6
Europe

UK

France

Germany

ltaly

Span

Ceniral & Eastern Eurcpe

Uniied States

tatn America

‘ncha

Aswa (ex. Japan)

Australia

Midde East & Afnca

Completed deals
Source:Thomson Reuters
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Business review (continued)

During the financial year we advised on some of the largest and ~ We also continued to recenve industry recognition

hughest profile deals of the year including

Cairn Energy (2011}

B UJSE60bn disposat of a 40% stake in
Cam India toVedanta Resources

Extract Resources (2012)

B Adwisor in relation to A$2.2bn takeover offer
by CGNPC-URC and CADFund

lcetand management and co-investors (2012)

® | 55bn acquisition of Iceland Foods

EDP {Current)

= €2.7bn sale of a 24 35% stake by the
Portuguese State & Strategic Partnership
with the acquirer, China Three Gorges

Yolkswagen (2011)

& £3 /bn public tender offer for all shares
outstanding of MAN SE

Polkomeel (201 1)

m [isposal of the company to Spartan Capnal
Holdings for €4 5bn

Anadotu Efes (2012)

& Adviser to Anadolu Efes on the formagion of
a strategic allance with SABMiller in Turkey
Russia and Central Asia

Rolls-Royce (2011)

®  §38bn public tender offer for Tognum effected
wia a |V between Rolls-Royce and Daimler

EQT (2011)

® €1 4bn acquisiaon of Dometc Group from
a consortium of lenders, board directors
and employees

Walmart {204 1)

" Acquishon of a controlling interest in
Massmart for an aggregate consideration
of ¢ USE25bn

Queensiand Government {2011}

& Char of the Lead Adwser Consortium ¢n
A% 6bn infrastructure assets sales programme

AREA Property Partners & Delancey (2011}

®  Potential acquisivon of Minerva PLC for £1 1bn
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The Banker tnvestmens Banking awards (2011)
" Most Innovative Investment Bank for M&A

Real Deals Private Equity awards (2012)
UK Deal of the Year and Grand Pnx Deal of
the Year

ISI5Wiggle

Private Equity News Europe (20F1)
®  Financia! Sponsors Coverage Team of the Year

The Banker Investment Banking awards (2011)

I
8 Most innovative Investment Bank for ;
Growth Companies

Financial News Europe awards (2011) I
w  European Independent Adwiser of the Year

FT & mergermarket European awards (2007-2011}
a  Md-market Financial Adwser of the Year




Business review (continued)

Financing advisory review

Debt advisory and restructuring

Rethschild has the largest and most expenenced independent
debt advisory and restructuring teams, with breadth and depth
of experience, the broadest client base, the widest range of
pricing and leverage sources and a proven track record of
delivering deals

We have an unsurpassed deal flow and expertise in structuring
deals for today’s markets

Our debt advisory expertise encompasses all financing markets
ncluding banks, bonds, ratings, dervatives and hedging

QOur restructuring expenence includes lender negotiations,
recapitalisations capital raising exchange offers, distressed
M&A, in-court and out-of-court transactions and creditor
representation

We provide our chents with

®  Objective independent, client-focused adwvice, free from the
conflicts of interest faced by balance sheet banks

»  Capnal structure advice that optimises both terms and
sources of debt financings, refinancings and restructuring

= Innovative advice to companies, creditors, governments and
private equity houses on financing strategy raising debt and
ratings, and hedging strategies

" A creatve and resourceful appreach, bringing innovative
solunons to maximise value and optians for our chients

We are 1n constant dizlogue with banks, iInvestors and rating
agencies allowing us to understand the real picture

Raothschild has adwised on US$850bn of debt adwvisory and
restructuning assignments since January 2009

Rothschild's debi adwisory business advised on over 140
transactions across the credit spectrum valued at ¢ US$95bn
in 201 |

Rothschild ranked No | in EMEA and Global restructuring
league tables for 2011 and held top 5 positions in the US and
Asia & Pacific

2 Houlihan Lokey . 355 i3
3 Goldman Sachs 265 8
4 Blackstone 230 8
5 Gleacher & Co 138 3
6 Lazard 132 13
7 PwC 114 6
8 Alvarez & Marshal 90 2
9 Moels & Co 78 3
10 Leonardo & Co 62 3

Announced deals by value {| January to 31 December 2011}
Source Thomson Reuters January 2012

Global Restructuring

Lazard 760 49

2

3 Houlhan Lokey 621 35
4 Blackstone 468 27
S Moels & Co 385 22
& Goldman Sachs 312 13
7 Alvarez & Marshal 193 9
8 PwC 138 9
9 FTI Consulting 98 5
0 KPMG 88 7

Announced deals by value {| January to 31 December 201 1)
Source Thomson Reuters January 2012
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Business review (continued)

Our zbility to complete complex projects for both corporate
chents and state/government organisations was reflected in the
following landmark transactions and industry awards

Iceland Foods (2012)

®  Debt advce on rasing £885m of senior
facilties backing managements buyout of
tceland Foods

Alibaba Group Holding Limited (2012)

& UJS$3 0bn debt financing for the privatisation
of Alibaba.com from the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and corporate purposes

Nakheel (201 1)

" Restructuring of LUSE15bn external habilities
and US$7 3bn new money contibution

Miruster for Finance of the Republic of Ireland (2011}

B &30bn restructunng of State-owned Anglo
Irsh Bank

B Financia! Achnser

De Beers (2011)

®  Debt adwce on the signing of a new US$2bn
mutticurrency Credit Facility

Associated Briush Pores (2011)

& Debt and dervatives adwvice on comprehensre
refinanang of the group through a £24bn
secured coporate programme

Pamplona Capital Management (2011)

= Advice to Sponsor on US$2 Ibn financal
restructunng of KCA Deutag

Yell Group plc

= Debt advice on covenant reset and
other amendments to its existing £3 1bn
bank faciitres

Dubai World

= US$31 8bn financing to Dubai World on
liabilty management

DS Smith Ple (2012)

®  Debt adwice on new €700m acquisiion
finance faolity to support proposed acquisiion
of SCA Packaging

APA Group (2011)

¥ Arrangement of the A$310m non-recourse
bank debt as part of the 80% equity sell down
1n Allgas

Grainger (201 1)

®  Debt adwice cn a £840m Forward Start Facility
due 2014-2020
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Private Equity News Europe (2011)

= Tumnaround and Restructunng Adwviser of
the Year

IFR (2011}

®  EMEA Restructuning of the Year
Truvo

The Banker (2012)

®  Middle East Restructunng of the Year
Makheel

Equity advisory

Rothschild offers independent advice 1o clients on a wide range
of equity caprtal raising transactions. With teams on the ground
In key markets around the world, we have an unparallelied global
footprint and deeper resources than any other adviser in this
area Our expertise includes IPCs secondary offerings, block
trades, spin-offs and convertible nstruments We have advised
on ever 100 transactons in 21 countries with a combined

deal value of US$270bn since January 2009, more than any of
Our competitors

Rothschild 1s the leading adviser in equrty transactions
worldwide with equity adviscry specialists in London, Paris,
Frankfurt, Milan, Moscow Hong Kong, Sydney and New York.

Our high volume of assignments enables us to gan a detaled
understanding of investor behawvour. optmal deal structure,
performance of key market participants and the latest market
trends As a result, our teamns can provde clients with unique
insights iInto the execution of recent offenngs and the track record
of bookrunners, and equip clients with the latest deal technology

Qur pure adwisory business model enables us to focus solely on
achieving the best possible resutt for our chents and minimsing
their execution risk, providing

®  Honest, strategic views of what is achievable in prevaling
markets

»  Rigorous analysis, support for issuers in negotiabons and
tactical judgements

s Coordination of bookrunners to maximise value for our
clients, bnnging discipline and precision to the execution of
equity offenngs



Business review (continued)

We have adwised on some of the world's largest equity capital
markets transactions duning the past year These nclude

Porsche SE (201 1)
2 €50bn nghts 1ssue
= financal advser to Porsche Autormobil Holding SE

Roya! Bank of Scotland (20f1)

& JS$1 25bn IPO of Samsonite on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange

8 Agwiser to Shareholder

NORMA Group (2011)
n €386m IPQ of NORMA Group
8 Adwiser to Company and its shareholders

BC Partners & Cinven (2011)
®  £570m Accelerated Book Build
®  Adwiser to BC Partners & Cinven

Lenzing {2011)
8 £620m re IPO on Austnan Stock Exchange
®  Adwiser to the Company and its Shareholders

Bilfinger Berger (2011}

= £212m PO of Bilfinger Berger Globa!
Infrastructure Fund

Banking

The Rothschild Banking business s focused on the growth
actrabies of Debt Fund Management, Private Chent Lending and
Asset Finance As planned, there has been a further reduction

in the commercial loan books duning the year and whilst
impairment levels have increased compared to last year, this
reflects a cauticus approach in the hght of the current uncertain
economic outlook.

The commercial foan books are primarnily in the Commercial
Property and Leveraged Finance sectors The Commercial
Property loan portfolio 1s focused on mud market property
companies secured on commercial properties throughout
the UX. The Leveraged Finance loan portfolio s sentor and
mezzanine debt in the larger European leveraged buy-outs

Rothschilds banking actvities nclude the Five Arrows Leasing
businesses, which prowide a range of specialist asset finance
faciliies to UK companies. Specific niches include print finance,
broadcast, asset based lending and vehicles to local authorties.
The understanding of these sectors has resufted in the businesses
delvering a robust performance throughout the year, based upon
good margin income and continuing low levels of impairment.

Rothschild continues to develop its Debt Fund Management
actnvities. In addrion to managing ¢ €300 million of existing
senior debt and mezzanine funds dunng the year the business
completed the acquistion of Elgin Capral, an established CLO

manager, with over €1 3 bilfion of sentor debt currently under
management This acquisition  has provided both critical mass
and addittonal expertise to our existing business, creating a
platform from which we can launch future debt based funds

In 2009 we launched Rothschild Reserve a deposit-taking
business which complements the wealth management activities
of the Rothschild Group There have been five highly successful
Rothschild Reserve deposit offers to date and further products
are planned

Risk Management

The Chief Risk Officer co-ordinates risk policy and promotes
the development and mamntenance of effective procedures
throughout the Group Our internal audit team reviews our
internal control framewaork and reportis its findings to the
Audit Committee

The responsibifiies and membership of the Board Committees
involved in the oversight of nsk management are set out on
page 20

Credit Risk

Credit nsk anses from lending and trading actviues The Credit
Committee sets imits, reviews concentrations, monitors
excepttons and makes recommendations on credit decisions to
the Group Assets and Liabilties Committee

Credn nisk arising from treasury dealing actnties 1s measured on
a real-time basis whereby all exposures relating to a particular
counterparty are aggregated and monstored against imits Credrt
rsk on dervatve transactions 1s measured by summing the
current exposure with an allowance for potential future exposure

Details of credit exposures, ncluding nsk concentrations, are set
out n note 22

Market Risk

Market nsk arises as a result of actvities in currency, nterest rate,
debt and equity markets During the year, exposure to market risk
has continued to be small i relation to capital, as trading activities
have been focused on managing the Group’s exposure to interest
rate and currency nsk Limits on market nsk exposure are set by
the Group Assets and Liabilites Cornmittee

Detalls of market nsk exposures are disclosed in note 23
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Business review {(continued)

Liquidity Risk

Liguidity risk arises from the funding of our lending and
trading actvities The Group Assets and Liabidities Committee
recommends pohicies and procedures for the management of
liquidhty nsk

biquidity 1s measured in accordance with regulatory guidelines
on 2 behaviourally adjusted basis and on a stressed basis The
results are monrtored aganst limits which have been approved
by the Group Assets and Liabilities Committee

Operational Risk

Operational risk, which 1s inherent in all business activities 15
the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or faled internal
processes, people and systems ar from external events Key
to management of operational risk 1s the mantenance of a
strong framework of internal controls These are subject to
regular independent review by the internal audit department,
whose findings are reported to the Group Audit Committee
which monitors the implementation of any recommendations
Qperational nsk encompasses reputational risk, which 1s
particularly relevant to the business Reputational risk is
managed through format approval processes for new clients
and new products In addition, operational procedures for the
conduct of business are subject to continual monitoring The
Group mantains insurance policies to mitigate loss in the event
of certain operational sk events

Other Material Risks

Qther nsks which are, or may be, material anise in the normal
conduct of business Such risks, which include concentration risk,
pension fund risk and residual nsk, are identified and managed
as part of the overall nsk controls and are taken Into account

in the Board’s penodic assessment of capital adequacy Loss

of key personnel 1s a material risk to the business The Group
mitigates this risk through rts training, career development and
remuneration policies
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Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Directors' report and financial
staterments for the year ended 31 March 2012

Principal Activities and
Business Review

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited (‘the Company™} and 1ts
subsidiary undertakings {together with the Company, the
Group”) provide a range of banking and financial services

The Company's principal place of business 1s at New Court,

St. Swithin's Lane, London, EC4N BAL A review of the activities
of the Group for the year; including an indication of likely future
developments, s contained in the Chairran's staternent on
page 6 and the Business review on pages 7 to 16

Results and Dividends

The profit for the financial year attnbutable to shareholders
after tax and non-centrolling interests was £8 732,000
(2011 £17,156 000) The profit attributable to shareholders
has been deak wath as follows

2012 2011
£000 £000
Crdinary dmdends pad 18000 25000
Transfer (from) reserves (9 268) (7844)
8732 17,156

Corporate and Social
Responsibility

The Group 15 committed to supportng the principle of equal
opportunities and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfar
discrimination on the grounds of colour race, nationality ethnic
ongn, gender martal status, disabdity, religion, age or sexual
orentation The Group's am 1s to recrut, tran and promote the
best person for the job and to create a working environment

free from unlawful discrimination, victirmusation and harassment,
and in which all employees are treated with dignity and respect.

The Group 1s committed to supporting chanties, both in the
areas in which it operates and in the wider community The
Charies Committee was established in 1975 to constder the
hundreds of requests recewved every year from charities seeking
financial support The sum of £544,000 (2011 £546,000)

was charged against the profits of the Group duning the

year in respect of gifts for charnable purposes. No political
contributions were made during the year
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Typical beneficiaries continue to include organisations
concerned with elderly people, healthcare social welfare
and education Requests for support from staff in respect of
charitable causes with which they are asseciated, or have an
involvernent, are actively encouraged

Rothschild in the Community

Through the Rothschild in the Community programme we
encourage our people to volunteer their time for community
initiatives that make a real difference to peoples Ives In
2011712 40% of NMRs London staff took part n cur
volunteering programme

Education

We work in partnership with three schocls in econormically
deprived areas close to our offices Bow School of Maths and
Computing, Old Palace Primary School and South Camden
Community School Qur volunteers particpate in Iteracy
SUpEOt programmes, careers mentonng employabilty events,
work experience and support for children in transtion from
primary to secondary schoct Through all of this we am to
develop students' confidence, broaden their horizons and help
them on the path towards achieving socizl mobility We also
believe there 15 a role for us to play In supporting the schools'
leadership teams as they work to drive up standards, and we are
represented on the governing bodies of all three schools

We are delighted that our Business in the Community ‘Brg Tick',
first awarded in 2010 in recognstion of our work with scheols, has
been reaccredited in 2012, ndicating that our partnerships have
developed and continue to make a posive impact.

Community development

We support community organisations working to combat the
effects of deprivation in the areas in which our partner schools
are based Volunteers have thts year supported the Bromley by
Bow Centre City Gateway, Providence Row and the London
Wildiife Trust, amongst others, volunteering on behalf of solated
elderly pecple, young people in vocational training, London s
homeless, and cur environment.



Report of the Directors

Rothschild and the Environment

We understand that the Group s day to day operations have an
impact on the environment and we are committed to reducing
that impact, promoting ernvironmental awareness among our
pecple, and to achieving continuous Improvement In our
environmental performance Environmental stewardship 1s the
responsibility of the Environment Committee

Energy use

Qur greatest envircnmental priority 1s to keep reducing our
use of energy, particularly electricity, and in recent years we
have achieved considerable success in this Having moved into
our new bullding, we are now in the process of establishing

a new baseline energy footprint, and beginning to map the
opportunities for future iImprovements

Business travel

Aur travel and the ability to meet our clients face to face is an
important pait of our business and a significant contributor

to our overall CO,; emissions Ve monrtor our ar travel and
measure the associated carbon ermissions by cabin class We
operate a Green Flights' scheme to make staff aware of the
greater fevel of emissions associated with flying Business Class
and offer them the opportunity to choose a lower cabin class in
return for a donation to the charity of their choice

Responsible use of resources

We promote a palicy of reducing waste reusing what we or
others can and recychng as much as possible In London the
unusea food from our kitchens 1s composted and converted
into fertiliser, and any other waste which 1s not recycled is sent
for ncineration with energy capture, thus dverting it from
landfill We purchase recycled paper and our orinters are set to
print double-sided as default We use mugs instead of disposabla
coffee cups where possible, and filtered tap water n place of
bottled water n meeting rooms We have been awarded Gold
four years running in the Clean City Awards

Staft

Dunng the year the Group continued with its long-established
policy of prowiding employees with information on matters of
concern to them and on developments within the Group by

a seres of notices to staff The Group encourages staff to put
forward their views through a staff consultative committee The
interest of all staff in the performance of the Group 1s realised
through the Groups profit shanng scheme in which siaff at all
levels participate

The recrutment, traming, career development and promotion
of disabted persons is fully and farly considered having regard
to the aptitudes and abilities of each individual Efforts are made
to enable emplayees who become disabled during employment
to continue their career with the Group and, If necessary,
appropriate traimng ss provided

Supplier Payment Policy

The Group does not currently follow any code or standard on
payment practice K 15 the Group's policy 1o confirm the terms

of payment wath suppliers when agreeing the terms of each
transaction, to ensure that those suppliers are made aware of the
terms of payment, and 1o abide by the terms of payment. Included
within habibties 1s the amount due to trade creditors which, at

34 March 2012, represented 34 days purchases outstanding

Directors

The names of the present Directers of the Company are shown
on page 5

It 15 with much regret that the Directors recerd the death, on

19 April 2012, of Mr Leopold de Rothschild

Financial Risk Management

The financial nsk management objectives and policies of the
Company and the Group in respact of the use of financial
nstruments, together with analyses of exposures to credit
risk, market risk and hquicity risk, are set out In note 2 to the
financial statements

Auditor

KPMG Audit Plc have indicated their wallingness to continue in
office and a resolution to re-appoint them and to authonise the
Directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at
the Annual General Meeting, In accordance with Section 485 of
the Companies Act 2006

Audit Information

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this
report confirm that, s far as they are each aware, there 15 no
relevant audit nforrnation of which the Company s auditors

are unaware, and each Director has taken all the steps that he
ought to have taken as a Director to make himself aware of any
relevant audit nformation and to establish that the Cormpanys
audrtors are aware of that information

By Order of the Board

(rtiod

Anne-Marie Sizer
New Court. St. Swithin’s Lane, London EC4N 8AL
24 July 2012
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Committees

To fzaiitate the efficient adminsstration of the Company's and
the Group's affars certan functions and responsibiliies have
been delegated by the Board to the following committees,
the terms of reference and membership of which are
regutarly reviewed

Group Management
Committee

The Group Management Committee reports to the Board of
Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG, an intermedrate parent
company Its purpose 15 to formulate strategy for the Rothschild
Group's businesses, to assess the delvery of that strategy,

to ensure the proper and effective functioning of Group
governance structures, operating policies and procedures, to
define the Group's risk appetite and tc be responsible for the
managemerit of risk.

Membership Nigel Higains (Chairman), Alexandre de Rothschild,
Paul Barry, Mark Crump, Andrew Didham, Marc-Olivier Laurent,
Robert Lertdo Vert de Maddalena, Richard Martin, Olivier
Pécoux, Jonathan Westcott

Group Assets and
Liabilities Committee

This committee reports to the Group Management
Committee It is responsible for ensuring that the Group
has prudent funding and hquidity strateges, for the
efficient management and deployment of capital resources
within regulatory constraints, and for the oversight of the
management of the Group's other financial strategies and
policies set by the Group Management Commuittee
Membership Anthony Alt (Chairman), Peter Barbour,
Christopher Coleman, Paul Copsey, Mark Crump Andrew

Oidham, Denis Faller, Adam Greenbury, Richard Martin, Matthias
Montani, Alexander Troschel, jonathan Westcott, Philip Yeates

Credit Committee

This commuttee authorises and reviews all credit exposure o
new and existing counterparties Exposures exceeding certan
henits are subject to ratfication by the Group Assets and
Liabiliies Committee

Membership Andrew Didham {Chatrman), Chrnstopher
Coleman, Michael Clancy, Paul Copsey, Adam Greenbury, Peter
Griggs, Debra Lewis, Paul Thompson, Philip Yeates.
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New Client Acceptance
Committee

This committee approves, from a reputational, money laundering
and due diligence perspective, all new chents to be accepted by
the Global Financial Advisory business

Membership Crispin Wright (Charman), Sarah Blomfield, Adam
Greenbury Dominic Hollamby Nicholas Ivey, Axel Siaffiage,
Albrecht Stewen Maurice Topiol, StuartVincent, William Wells,
Jonathan Westcott, Adam Young

Group Audit Committee

This committee of the Board of Rothschilds Continuation
Holdings AG supervses and reviews the Group’s internal audit
arrangements, haises with the Group's external auditors and
monstors the overall system and standards of internal control

Membership Peter Smith (Chairman), Sytvain Hefes,
Bernard Myers Judith Sprieser

Group Remuneration and
Nominations Committee

This committee sets remuneration policies for the Group
oversees the annual remuneration review and approves
proposals for promotion

Membership Sylvain Hefes (Charman), David de Rothschild
Eric de Rothschild, Mark Evans, Peter Smith




Statement of Directors’ responsibilities in
relation to the report of the Directors and the

financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Report of
the Directors and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare Group and
Parent Company financial statements for each financial year
Under that law the Directors have elected to prepare both
the Group and the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU and apphicable law

Under company law the Directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give 2
true and far view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent
Company and of the profit ar loss of the Group and Parent
Company for that penod

In preparing each of the Group and the Parent Company
financial staterments, the Directors are required to

= select sutable accounting pohicies and then apply
them consistently

= make judgements and estmates that are reasonable
and prudent

®  state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRS as adopted by the EU, and

®  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis
unless it 1s inappropriaie to presume that the Group and
the Parent Company will continue in business

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient 1o show and explain the Parent
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any ume the financial posiiion of the Parent Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with
the Companies Act 2006 They have a general responsibility for
taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard
the assets of the Group and to prevent and detect fraud and
other rregularities

The Directors are responsible for the mantenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial nformaton included

on the Company's website Legislation in the UK goverrung the
preparation and dissemination of finanaal statements may differ
from legislation in other pnsdictons.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members
of N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

We have audited the Group and Parent Company financal
statemenis (the “financal statements™} of N M Rothschild & Sons
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2012 set out on pages 23
to 90 The financial reporting framewerk that has been applied

in their preparation I1s applicable law and International Financial
Reporting Standards ( IFRS '} as adopted by the EU and as
regards the Parent Company financial statements, as apphed in
accordance with the provisions of the Comparies Act 2006

This report i1s made solely to the Company s members

as a body. in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Our audit work has been undertaken so
that we rrught state to the Company's members those matters
we are required to state to them in an auditors report and for
no other purpase To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do
not accept or assume responsibility to anyene other than the
Company and the Company's members, as a body, for our audit
work, for this report or for the opinions we have formed

Respective Responsibilities of Directors
and Auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors’
responsibiiies on page 2 |, the Diwectors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that
they give a true and far view Our responsibility 15 to audtt, and
express an opinion on, the financral staternents n accordance
with applicable law and International Standards on Audrting

(UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the
Auditing Practices Board's (APB's} Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements

A description of the scope of an audit of financial statements is
provided on the APB's web-site at.

www rc org uk/apbfscope/private cfm

Opinion on Financial Statements
In our opiion

= the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of the Group s and of the Parent Company’s affairs

as at 3} March 2012 and of the Group's profit for the year

then ended,

®  the Group financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU,

= the Parent Company financial statements have been
properly prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by
the EU and as applied in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 2006, and

®  the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
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Opinion on Other Matters Prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion the information given in the Directors' report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements

Matters on Which we are Required to Report
by Exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters
where the Compames Act 2006 requires us to repart to you If
IN our opinion

= adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been receved from
branches not wisited by us, or

®  the financial statements are not In agreement with the
accounting records and returns, or

= certan disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by
law are not made, or

= we have not receved all the information and explzanations
we require for our audit.

g A

Karim K Ha)i {Senior Statutory Audror)

For and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

Canary Wharf

London

El45GL

24 July 2012



Consolidated income statement
For the year ended 31 March 2012

012 2011

Note £000 £'000

Interest and simdar income 4 76354 3 82277
Interest expense and similar d;arges o o i o .4 ) (58958) (63957}
Net interest income 17,398 18,320
Fee and commission iIncome 5 354991 384,118
Fee and commission experse 5 (22951) (24776)
Net fee and commission income 332040 359,342
Net trading income [ 2958 2216
Other operating Income ’ o o i T o 7 I9—93—9 ) ) 16612
Total operating tncome 372333 396,490
Impairment losses 12,13 {12,770} (2,190
Net operating mcome 359563 394,300
Operating expenses 89 (320313} (343 945)
Deprecation and amortisation 18,19 (7842 (6420)
Share of profit i assocates ) i ’ T 3514 1520
Profit before income tax 34972 45,855
Tax 10 (10291} {15,593)
Profit for the year* 24,631 30,262

* Of the £24 631,000 (2011 £30262,000) profit for the year, £8,732,000 (201 | £17,156,000) is attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the parent company, £9,007.000 (2011 £8,514,000) s attributable to holders of perpetual instruments and

£6,892000 (2011 £4,592,000} 1s attributable to other non-controlling interests

The nates on pages 31 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £'000 £1000
Profit for the financial year 24,631 30162
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale investments
Change in fair value of assets classfied as avaltable-for-sale (14205} 33827
Net change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets
transferred to income statement (526) (2220)
Amortisation of far value of reclassified assets 12 5037 5987
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow hedges 2156 2384
Orher wtems recognised directly in equity
Actuana! {losses)/gains on defined benefit pension funds (62,224) 277215
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations (3570) 83
Income tax on cther comprehensive Income 10 12969 (22803)
Other comprehensive income for the financial year,
net of income tax (60,363) 44,988
Total comprehensive income for the financial year (35 732) 75,250
Attributable to
- QOrdinary shareholders of the parent (50463) 63,142
- Holders of perpetual instruments 9,007 8514
— Other non controlling interests 5724 3594
(35,732) 75250

The notes on pages 31 to 90 form an integral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated balance sheet

At 31 March 2012

2012 2001
MNote £000 £000
Assers
Cash and bafances at central barks 543038 646 535
Loans and advances to banks 2 1562n © 375066
Loans and advances to customers 12 817,664 881 106
Avallable for-sale financial assets ) 13 372677 575657
Cermvauves ) . I T i I4u“ 7 25117 T - ~I7,|44
Other assets 15 45281 151697
Current tax assets 2479 4665
Investments in assotiates ) 16 38510 40121
Intangible assets S T ’ l!; ) ’ _22 63_1 T 4"903
Property plant and equipment u ) 19 63,134 31729
Deferred tax assets Py 98214 85971
Total assets 2285020 18245%4
Llablhl:lfs
Deposits by banks 178139 176362
Customer deposits 1,085,832 1,235300
Repurchase agreements u - ) ) : - 41708
Derwvatives ) ) ) o i ) |:1 ’ i 4u3"66 o —|4~57§
Debt secunties in 15sue 20 141720 460,751
Other habibues 21 133,110 129008
Curvent tax labiltes o o ’ B 4,985 T 6367
Accruals and deferred mcome" ) ’ o T 234293 T 795“940
Total hatihties 1,788 445 2,260011
Equity
Share capdal 30 5765 57.655
Share premeum account o 97936 97936
Retained earnings 229376 288,458
Other reserves T T T ) ) G130 QI99)
Total shareholders equity awributable to ordinary shareholders 353647 422,110
Non-controlling interests 29 18593 18,138
Perpetual instruments 3t 124335 124,335
Total equity 496,575 564,583
Total equity and habilities 2,285,020 2,824,554

The accounts on pages 23 to 90 were approved by the Board of Directors and were signed on tts behalf by

N \W

Andrew Didham, Direcior
24 July 2012
The nates on pages 31 to 90 form an ntegral part of these financial statements
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2012

Available- Non-
Share Share Retaned Translavon forsale Hedging Perpetual controlling
capital premwm  earmings reserve  reserve reserve nstruments  interests Total equity
£000 £10600 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000 £000
At | April 201 ¢ ) 57.655 97936 183458 15719 (38.027) 369 124,335 18138 564583
Total comprehensive
ncome for the penod - - (41082 (2452) {8577y 1 648 2,007 571 (35730
Dwidends - - (18,000) - - - - {5269) (23,269)
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - ~ - (12172) - (12173
—Tax thereon - - - - - - 3165 - 3165
At 31 March 2012 57,655 97936 229378 13267 (46604) 2017 124,335 18,593 496,575
Ac | April 2010 57.655 97936 178,804 14,647 (83,717) (1 357) 124,335 28,354 536657
Total comprehensive
income for the penod - - 34654 1072 25650 1726 8514 3,594 75250
Dividends - - (25000) - - - - (13810) (38810)
Interest on perpetual instruments - - - - - - (11825 - (8w
~Tax thereon - - - - - - 3311 - 331
At 31 March 2011 57 655 97936 288,458 15719 (38027) 369 124,335 18,138 564,583

The notes on pages 31 to 50 form an integral part of these financial staternents
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Company balance sheet
At 31 March 2012

2012 2011
Note £'000 £'000
Assets
Cash and balances at central banks 543025 646,523
Loans and advances to banks I T oo ) "Iplw ) 9]-834 ) 2-92,3‘—57
Loans and advances to customers 12 784680 847455
Avalable forsale fnancil assets 13 71 144 573004
Dervatives 14 25117 17 144
Cther assets o S T 104294 111999
Current tax assets i 347 900
Shares in subsdiary undertakings ’ 2 43547 43547
Investments in assocites ’ 16 %611 © 39208
Investments in joint ventures 17 5375 5375
Property, plant and equipment T ) ) |9— T 5 IFSE:Z i 19271
Deferred tax assets 22 88 140 72625
Total assets 1,145 676 2,669,408
Liabiliues
Deposits by banks 178139 176195
Customer deposits o s T T 1160345 1616552
Repurchase agreements - 41,708
Dervatives o T ) ’ ) IV 4366 14538
Debt secunties in issue ’ 20 83365 9"3—4 13
Other liabiles ) ’ N 2 112010 109811
Accruls and deferred ncome T ) 178246 122957
Total iabuhties 1,716,471 2,175174
Equity
Share capral 30 57655 57,655
Share premwm account 97936 97935
Perpétual Instruments oo orrmormmm e T o 3[ o uli;:33§ I"24,335
Retained earmings 195460 253,140
Other reserves T T Tmm o m T n o mm T T T T Tag ey (38832)
Toral equity 429,205 494234
Total equaty and habilities 2,145,676 2,669,408

The accounts on pages 23 to 50 were approved by the Board of Direciors and were signed on is behalf by

e

Andrew Didham, Director
24 July 2012
The notes on pages 31 1o 90 form an miegral part of these financul stxterments
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Company statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Available-
Share Retained for-sale Hedging  Perpetual Total
Share capital premium €armings reserve reserve instruments equity
£1000 £000 £000 £000 £°000 £000 £'000
At | April 2011 ) 57,655 97.936 _253.|40_ __"(39.20 !.)_ . } 36_9 I'24.3§5 494_23‘!
Profit for the financial year - - 10092 - - 9007 19099
Cther comprehensive income
Avallable-for-sale investments
Change in farr value of assets
classified as avallable-for-sate - - - (14492) - - (14492)
Net change in fair value of avalable-for sale
financial assets transferred to income statement - - - {526) - - (526)
Amortisation of far value of
reclassified financial assets - - - 5037 - - 5037
Cash flow hedges
Effective portion of changes in fair value
of cash flow hedges - - - - 2,156 - 2156
Other items
Actuanal losses on defined benefit
pension funds - = f{eany - - ) - (62222)
Income tax on other comprehensive income - - 12450 984 {508) - 12926
Dmdends _ - - {48000) - ) - - (I?.OOO)
Interest on perpetual nstruments - - - - - (12172 (12172
—Tax thereon - - - - - 3165 3165
At 31 March 2012 57,655 97.936 195,460 (48,198) 2007 124,135 429 205
At ) Aprit 2010 57655 97,916 2386%0 } (64.741) (1,357} 124 335 452,518
Profit for the financial year . - - 21922 - - 8514 30436
Other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale investments
Change in far value of assets
dassified as avalable-for sale - - - 33,662 - - 33662
Net change n far value of avallable-for-sale
financial assets transferred 1o income statement - - - (2,220 _ - (2,220}
Amom;an-on <;f fa-l; valu; o} o )
reclassified financial assets - } - - 5,987 - - 3987
Cash flow hedges
Effectrve portion of changes in
frviyeofashflowhedges - o ..o 2B - 2
Other zems
Actuanal gains on defined
benefit pension funds - - 27795 - - =S
Income tax on other comprehensive iIncome - - (10247) (11889 (658) - {22814
Drdends e oo e e+ o R L " - z. ... 5000
Interest on perpetual nstruments - - - - - {(11815) {11825}
—Tax thereon - - - - - 3311 331
At 31 March 2011 57,655 97 936 253,140 {39 201) 369 124 335 494234

The notes on pages 31 to 90 form an integral part of these financal statements
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Cash flow statements
For the year ended 31 March 2012

1012 2012 011 2011
Group Company Group Company
MNote £000 £'000 £000 £000

Cash flow from operating acuvities
Praofit before income tax for the financial year 34,921 18 407 45,855 37748

Adjustments to reconcile net profit to cash flow from operating activities
Mon-cash items included tn net profit and other adjustments

Depreaation and amortisaton 7842 lela 6420 2785
Dwdends from subsidianes and assocates - (20809) - (23,650)
Share of operating profit of assouates (3514 - L 920) -
Impairment of financial and other assets {net of recovery) t2,770 15083 2190 3753
Unreabsed exchange gains — non-operating assets ) (2616) * (824) -
(Profit)/loss on disposal of available-for-sale assets (2510) (2510) 107 136
Profit on disposal of subsidianes (546) - - -
Profit on disposal of fixed assets B ST (130} % T (563) -
i1,296 {4.629) 5410 (16,976}
Net decrease/{increase} in operatng assets
Net due toffrom banks {excluding cash equivalents) 1,903 1,944 (96029) (101 761)
Demvatves @973 7973) 3 3
Avalable-forsale financial ;ssets 193895 193067 219277 ) 219874
Loans and advances to customers 51994 49014 207905 255540
Accru;d |nco;ne, prepaid s“:x"penses and other assets 6733 o 7,705 i “29 555 (53,084)
246,552 243757 360,711 340572
Net (decrease)/increase in operatng labilives
Custofner deposits (149.468) (56207 (L190) (62.056)
Repurchase agreements (41708)  (N708)  (166670) (166670}
Demvatves T B8053) B016) (378 (3723)
Debt secunties In issue G19031)  (10048)  158) 4322
Accrued expenses and other fabiliies (19.651) @734) (117595  (72802)
Income taxes (pard)/recerved ) (6004) 1821 i {14 650) (1375)
(543515)  (518892) (309,085 (302,304
Net cash flow {used in)/from operatng actviues* {251,145) (261,357) 102,891 59,040
Cash flow (used in}/from investing activities
Acquistion/increase In stake of subsidianes, assooates and jaint ventures ) (_3 39 (906) gl_410} . (2043)
Dmdends recewved from subsidianes and associates R 2509 20809 1496 23630
Proceeds fram disposal of ;ubﬂduanes and associates ) o 449 3503 ) 527 w7
Prwseofbedsses (@86 G0 (878 (421)
Drsposal of fixed assets o 1,044 7 1402 2
Net cash flow (used in)/from invesung acuvities (35.578) (12492) (17.773) 8125
Cash flow used in financing acuvines \

Dradends pad

(18000} _ (18000) . @500) {25000
Interest pad on perpetual instruments B (P Y b 7 ) S (P A} /) (11825 (11825
DlSTﬂbl;tJms to r—lon—conm.;lh-r;g interests ’ (5269) - (13810) -
Net cash flow used in fimancing acuvities {35441} (30,172} {50.635) (36 B25)

Nt (@ecreaslincresse n cash nd cash equavalees GRis) _ _Q002) 4 0340
Cash and cash equvalents at | Apni 1016932 938880 982 449 908,540
Cash and cash equivalents at 3| March 27 634,768 634,859 1,016,932 918,880

* Group cash paid and recerved for interest dunng 2012 was £60,333.000 (2011 £59.450,000) and £73.967 000 (2011 £82,056000)
respectvely Company cash paid and recerved for interest dunng 2012 was £58,314000 (2011 £55719.000) and £61 323,000
(2011 £70.228,000) respectrvely

The notes on pages 31 to 90 form an ategral part of these financial statements.
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l. Summary of significant accounting policies

N M Rothschild & Sons Lirited {“the Company™) 15 a company incorporated in the United Kingdom The Group financial
statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries and jointly-controlled entives (together referred to as"the
Group™) and equity account for the Group's interests in associates The Parent Compary financial statements present information
about the Company as a separate entity and not about its group The accounting policies of the Group set out in this note aiso
apply to the Parent Company financial statements unless otherwase stated

Developments in reporting standards and interpretations

Standards affecting the financial statements

In the eurrent year, the only new or revised Standard that has affected the amounts reported in these financial statements s the
amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures that was implemented as part of Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

Part of the amendment requires addittonal disclosure of the financial effect of collateral held as security in respect of financial
instrurments and this s shown as part of note 2 2 on page 45 of the financal statements

Standards not affecting the reported results or the financial position

The following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted in the current year Their adoption has not had
any significant impact on the amounts reported in these financiat statements but may impact the accounting for future transactions
and arrangements

= IFRIC |9 Extinguishing Financial Liabiliies with Equity Instruments

= 1AS 24 Related Party Disclosures (Revised 2009’

The following amendments were made as part of Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

®  Amendments to IFRS | 'First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards’
®  Amendments to IFRS 3 'Business Combinations’

& Amendments to IAS | 'Presentation of Financial Statements’

= Amendments to IAS 27 ‘Consolidated and Separate Finanaal Staterments'

= Amendments to IFRIC {3 'Customer Loyatty Programmes’
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[. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

New Standards and interpretations

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periods begining after

b April 201 | and therefore have not been apphed in prepaning these consolidated financial statements The Group 1s currently
reviewing these new standards to determine therr effects on the Group's financial reporting Those that may have a significant
effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group are

Accounting standards first effective in the Group’s 2014 consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 Consohdated Financial Statements replaces 1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and SIC-12
Consolidation ~ Special Purpose Entities The new standard introduces a single model of assessing control Control exists where an
investor has the power to direct the activities of another entity in order to influence the returns to the investor

IFRS Il Jont Arrangements replaces 1AS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures The new standard requires all joint ventures to be equity
accounted whereas currently, the Group accounts for joint ventures by properticnal conschidation

IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in Other Entities sets out new disclosure reguirements in respect of interests in subsidianes, jont
arrangements and associates It also introduces new requirements for unconsolidated structured entities

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (revised) makes significant changes to the recogniion and measurement of defined benefit expenses
recogmised in the income statement.

Accounting standards first effective in the Group’s 2016 consolidated financial statements

IFRS 9 Financral Instruments replaces certain elements of IAS 39 Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement in respect of
the classification and measurement of financial assets and habilities

Basis of preparation

Both the Parent Company and the Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS""} and International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC’ } interpretations endorsed
by the European Union {‘EU') and with those requirements of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under
IFRS The financial staterments are prepared under the historical cost convention, except that avallable-for-sale investments, financiat
assets held for trading and all dervative contracts are stated at their fair value

The pnncipal accounting policies set out below have been consistently applied in the presentation of the Group finanoal statements

Basis of consolidation

The financial statements of the Group are made up to 31 March 2012 and consolidate the audited financial statements of the
Compariy and its subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings

Subsidiary undertakings are all entties {including special purpose entrties ' SPEs”} over which the Group has the power to govern
the financial and operatng policies, generally as a result of a shareholding of more than cne half of the voting rghts, so as to obtan
benefits from the actities of the entsty In assessing control, potenteal voting nights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
taken into account SPEs are consolidated when the substance of the relatonship between the Group and the SPE indicates control
by the Group. Potential indicators of control include an assessment of the nsks and benefits relating to the SPE's acuvities Subsidiary
undertakings are fully consolidated from the date on which the Group acquires control, and cease to be consolidated from the date
that control ceases

The Group uses the purchase method of accounting for the acquisttion of subsicdiary undertakings The cost of an acquisition 15
measured as the far value of the assets given as consideration shares issued or liabilities undertaken at the date of acquisition
plus, for acquisitions pnor to the adoption of the amendment to IFRS 3, any costs directly attributable to the acquisiton Since
the adoption of the amendment to IFRS 3, any costs attributable to the acquisibon are expensed through the Income Statement.
The excess of the cost of acquistion over the farr value of the net identfiable assets and far value of contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary undertaking acquired s recorded as goodwill All inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised surpluses and
deficits on transactions between group companies are eliminated on consokdation The accounting policies used by subsichary
undertakings are consistent with the polices adopted by the Group.

The financial statements of the Group's subsidiary undertakings are made up to @ date not earlier than three months before the
balance sheet date and are adjusted where necessary for any material transactions or events that occur between the two dates

In the Parent Company financial statements investments in subsidiary undertakings are carried at cost less any imparment losses
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. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation {continued)

Associated undertakings

An associated undertaking 15 an entity In which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the operating and financal
management policy decisions This s generally demonstrated by the Group holding in excess of 20 per cent, but ne mare than 50
per cent, of the voting rights

The Group's investments i associated undertakings are initially recorded at cost. Subsequently they are increased or decreased by
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profit ar loss or by ather movements reflected directly in the equity of the associated
undertakings When the Group's share of losses in an associated undertaking equals or exceeds its interest in the associated
undertaking, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associated undertaking Positve goodwill arising on the acquisiuon of an associated undertaking s ncluded in the cost of the
investrment {net of any accumulated wmpairment loss)

The Groups share of the post-tax results of associated undertakings is based on financial statements made up to 2 date not earlier
than three maonths before the balance sheet date, adjusted to conform with the accounting policies of the Group and for any
material transactions or events that occur between the two dates

In the Parent Company financial statements, investments i associated undertakings are carried at cost

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity 18 a jont venture that rvolves the establishment of an entity 10 which each venturer has an interest. Jointly
controlled entities are consolidated using the proportional consolidation method under which the Group s financral statements
include 1ts share of the joint venture s assets habiliies, ncome and expenses on a line-by-line basis Proportional consolidation 1s
discontinued when the Group no longer exercises joint control over the entity

In the Parent Company financial statements investments in joint ventures are carned at cost.

Going concern

The Group has considerable resources and continues to generate new profitable business It s well placed to manage its business
nsk for the forseeable future desprte an uncertan econormic outlook and, therefore, the financial staterments have been prepared on
a going concern basis

Foreign exchange

The consoldated finanaal statements are presented in sterling, whech 1s the Company’s functional currency and the Group's
reporting currency ftems included n the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using thesr functiona!
currency The funcuonal currency 15 the currency of the pnmary economic environment in which the entity operates

Income statements and cashflows of foreign operations are translated into the Group's reporting currency at average exchange
rates for the period where this rate approximates to the foreign exchange rates ruling at the date of the transactions and ther
balance sheets are translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period Exchange differences arsing from the translation of the
net investrment in foreign subsidiary and associated undertakings and joint ventures are taken to shareholders’ equity On disposal of
a foreign operation, these translaton differences are recognised In the Income staternent as part of the gain or loss on sale

Forewgn currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevalling at the date of the transaction Gans and losses
resutung from the settlement of such transactions, and from the transtation at period end exchange rates of monetary tems that
are denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income statement, except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash
flow hedges Non-monetary assets and liabilies that are measured in terms of historical cost in 2 foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transacton Non-monetary assets and habiliies denominated in foreign currencies that
are stated at far value are translated at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates when the far value was determined

Translation differences on equities classified as at far value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gan or loss n the
income statemnent. Translation differences on equities classfied as avalable-for-sale are included in the avallable-for-sale reserve in equity

Goodwill and far value adjustments ansing on the acquistion of a foreign entity are treated as assets and habdities of the foreign
enuty and are translated at the closing rate
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| Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Derivauve financtal instruments and hedge accounting

Derwatives

Derwatives are entered into for trading and nsk management purposes Dervatives used for nsk management are accounted for as
hedges where they qualify as such under IAS 39

Derwvatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured at far value with changes in farr value recognised in
the Income statement except that, where derivatrves qualfy for hedge accounting, recogrition of any gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged

Hedge accounung

The Group may apply erther far value or cash flow hedge accounting when transactions meet the critera for hedge accounting
treatment set out in LAS 39 At the inception of the hedge, the Group assesses whether the hedging dervatves meet the
effectiveness criteria of 1AS 39 in offsetung changes n the fair value or cashflows of the hedged iterns The Group then documents
the relationship between the hedging istrument and the hedged ttem It also records its risk management objecives, its strategy for
undertaking the hedge transaction and the methods used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging relationship

After inception, effectiveness 1s tested on an on-going basis Hedge accounting is discontinued when it 1s determined that a
dervative has ceased to be highly effective, or when the dervative or the hedged rtem 1s derecognised, or when the forecast
transaction 1s no longer expected to occur

Fair value hedge accounting

Changes in value of fair value hedge derwvatives are recorded In the income statement, together wath fair value changes to the
undertying hedged item in respect of the risk being hedged

If the hedge no longer meets the critera for hedge accounting, the difference between the carrying value of the hedged tem on
tarmination of the hedgng relationship and the value at which it would have been carried had the hedge never existed 1s amartised
to the Income statement over the residual period to maturity based on a recalculated effective interest rate

Cash flow hedge accountng

Changes in the far value of the effective portion of dervatives designated as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity The gain or
loss relating to the ineffective portion 1s recognised in the income statement Amounts accumulated in equrty are recycled to the
Income statement when the tem being hedged impacts prefit or loss

When hedge accounting s discontinued, any curnulative gain or koss in equity remans in equity and s only recognised in the
income statement when the forecast transaction 15 recogrised n the ncome statement When the forecast transaction 15 no longer
expected to occur, the cumulative balance in equity 1s immediately transferred to the income statement

Embedded derivauves

Some hybrid contracts contan both 2 dervative and a non-denvative compenent In such cases, the dervative component 15
termed an embedded dervative Where the econormic charactenstcs and nisks of embedded dervatves are not closely relaied
1o those of the host contract, and where the hybnd contract itself 1s not carned at far value through profit or loss, the embedded
derwative 15 separated and recorded at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the income statement.

The Group's smvestments in collateralised debt obligations ("CDOs ) which take credit exposure in the form of credit dervatives are
treated as containing embedded derwatives that are not closely refated to the host CDO contract. The change in far value of these
‘synthetic’ CDO contracts attibutable to the credt dervatives 1s recogrused in the income statement as part of trading ncome
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l.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Interest iIncome and expense

Interest Income and expense represents interest ansing out of banking activities ncluding lending and deposit-taking business
interest on refated hedging transacuons and interest on debt securities Net interest ansing from interest rate instruments held
for trading are included in trading ncome Interest income and expense 1s recognised n the income statement using the effectve
interest rate method

The effective Interest rate 1s the rate that exactly discounts the estmated future cashflows of a financial instrument to its net
carrying amount. It 15 used 1o calculate the amortised cost of a finanoal asset or a financial hability and to allocate the interest over
the relevant period (usually the expected Iife of the instrument) When calculating the effective interest rate the Group considers
all contractual terms of the financial instrement (for exarple, prepayment options} but does not consiger future credit losses The
calculation includes any premiums or discounts as well as all fees and transaction costs that are an integral part of the financial asset.

Fee and commission income

The Group earns fee and commussion income: from services provided to clients Fee income from adwisory and other services can
be dwvided into two broad categones fees earned from services that are provided over a peried of time, which are recognised over
the period in which the service s provided, and fees that are earned on completion of a significant act or on the occurrence of an
event, such as the completion of a transaction, which are recogrused when the act 1s completed or the event occurs

Fees and commissions that are an integral part of a loan, and loan commitment fees for loans that are Iikely to be drawn down, are
deferred (together with refated direct costs) and recognised over the Iife of the loan as an adjustment to the effective interest rate

Trading iIncome

Trading income arises from movements in the fair value of financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated at far
value through profit or loss

Financial assets and habilities

Financial assets and habilities are recognised on trade date and derecognised on erther trade date, if applicable, or on maturity

or repayment.

On intial recognition, IAS 39 requires that financial assets be classified into the following categories at far value through profit or
loss koans and advances, held-to-maturity nvestrents, or available-for-sale The Group does not hold any assets that are classified as
held-to-maturity Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category corpnises financial assets held for trading {1e primanly acquired for the purpose of selling in the short term) and
dervatives that are not designated as cashflow or net investment hedges These financial assets are iniially recognised at fair vatue,
with transaction costs recorded immediately in the income statement and are subsequently measured at far value Gans ang losses
arising frorn changes in farr value or on derecognition are recogrised In the income statement as net trading income Interest and
dradend income from financial assets at far value through profit or loss Is recogrused i trading income

Loans and advances

Loans and advances are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an actve market.
Loans which are ntended 10 be sold in the short term are classified as held for trading and are recorded at far value through profit
or loss

Loans and advances are intially recorded at far value, Including any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at amortsed cost using the effective nterest rate methed Gains and losses ansing on derecognition of loans and
receivables are recogrised in other operatng income

Finangial assets that have been reclassified as loans and advances out of the available-for-sale category are reclassified at fair value
on the date of reclassification and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effectve Interest rate method Any
gain or loss recognised in equity prior to reclassification 1s amortised to the income statement over the remaining matunty of the
financial asset
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[.  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Financial assets and liabihues (continued)

Available-for-sale investments

Avalable-for-sale nvestments comprise non-derivative financral assets that are erther designated as available-for-sale on initial
recognition or are not classified nto the categones described above Available-for-sale investments are inttially recognised at far
value, mcluding direct and incremental transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at far value

Gans and losses arisng from changes in the far value of avalable-for-sale financial assets are recognised In equity untl the financial
asset 15 sold, at which tme the cumulative gain or loss 1s transferred to the income statement Interest (determined using the
effactive interest rate method), Impairment losses and translation differences on monetary items are recogmsed in the iIncome
statement as they anse Dmdends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recogrised in the income statement when the
Groups night to receve payment 1s established

Financial iabilities

Except for dervatives which are classified as at farr value threugh profit or loss on intial recogrition, alt financial liabiliwes are carred
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method

Fmancial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to make specified payments to remburse the holder for a loss
it ncurs because a specified debtor fals to make payments when due, In accordance with the terms of a debt instrument Financial
guarantee labiities are intally recogrised at far value, and the initial fair value s amortised over the Iife of the guarantee The
guarantee lability 1s subsequently carried at the higher of the amortised amount and the expected present value of any expected
payment (when a payment under the guarantee has become probable)

Where one Group company enters into financial guarantee contracis to guarantee the indebtedness of other comparues within
the Group, that company considers these to be insurance arrangements and accounts for them as such In this respect the Group
company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent hability until such time as it becomes probable that it will be required to
make a payment under the guarantee

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when

s the contractual rights to cashflows ansing from the financial asset have expired, or

n it ransfers the financial asset including substantially all of the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset, or

w it transfers the financial asset, nether retaining nor transferring substantially afl the risks and rewards of the asset, but no longer

retains control of the asset.

Determinaton of fair value

The farr value of quoted investments In active markets 1s based on current bid prices For other financial assets, the Group
estabhshes fair value by using appropniate valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length transactions,
discounted cashflow analysis, option pricing models and other valuatton methods commonly used by market participants For
certain nvestments, the valuation may be derrved from quotations receved from various sources Where the market s iliquid, the
quotatons may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions The far value of short term debtors and creditors is
matenally the same as invoice value

Sale and repurchase agreements

When securiiies are sold subject to a commitment to repurchase them at a predetermined price, they reman on the balance sheet
and a hability 1s recorded in respect of the consideration receved The difference between the sale and repurchase price 15 ireated
as terest and recognised over the Iife of the agreement Securtties acquired n a reverse sale and repurchase agreement are not
recognised and the consideration 1s recorded in foans and advances on the balance sheet.
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| Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Financial assets and labilities (contunued)

Secuntisation transactions
The Group may enter into funding arrangements with lenders in order to finance speofic financial assets

In general, bath the assets and the related habilties from these transachons are held on the Group's balance sheet. However, to
the extent that the risks and returns associated with the financial instruments have been transferred to a third party, the assets and
labiliies are derecogrused in whale or in part

Interests in securitised financial assets may be retaned or taken in the form of serwor or subordinated tranches of debt securrues, or
other residual interests Such retaned interests are primarify recorded as avallable-for-sale assets

Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s objective ewidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impaired

Impairment losses are incurred If there 15 objective evidence of imparrment as a result of one or mare events occurring after inmal
recogniion of the asset (a 'loss event) and that loss event has an impact on the estmated future cashflows of the financial asset
or group of financial assets that can be reliably estmated Cbjective evidence that a financial asset or group of assets is impaired
includes abservable data about the fallowing loss events

1 significant financal difficulty of the issuer,
it abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal repayment,

I granting to the borrower a concession, for economic or legal reasens relatng to the borrower’s financial difficulty, that the
lender would not otherwise consider,

v it becoming probabte that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial recrganisation

Impairment of loans and advances

The Group first assesses whether objective ewidence of impairment exists indwidually for financial assets that are indmdually
significant and indvidually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant Impairment losses are calculated on a
collective basis in respect of losses that have been incurred but not yet identfied on loans that are subject to indwidual assessment
for impairment and for homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered indwidually significant If no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an indmdually assessed finanoal asset, it 15 included mn a collective assessment for impairment with other assets
wath similar risk characteristics

If there 15 objectve ewidence that an mparment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of expected future cashflows discounted at the financial asset’s oniginal
effective interest rate The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced, the loss being recognised in the income statement.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cashflows of a financial asset reflects the cashflows that may result
from scheduled interest payments, principal repayments, or other payments due, ncluding iquidation of collateral where available
In estimating these cashflows, management makes judgements about a counterparty s financial situation and the far value of any
undertyng collateral or guarantees in the Group's favour Each imparred asset 15 assessed on its mertts, and the workout strategy
and estimate of cashflows considered recoverable are reviewed by the Credit Committee on a quarterly basis The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and the timing of fisture cashflows are reviewed regularly to reduce any
differences between loss estmates and actual loss expenence

Collectively assessed credit nsk allowances cover credit losses inherent in portiolios of financial assets wath similar economic
characterstics where there 1s objectve evidence to suggest that they contan impared assets but the indwidual impaired rtems
cannot yet be identfied For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets are grouped on the basis of
similar credit risk charactenstics. Future cashflows are esumated on the basis of histonical loss expenence These estimates are
subject to regular review and adjusted to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the
historical loss expenence 15 based and to remove the effects of condisions in the tustorical penod that do not exast currently
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. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Once a financral asset or a group of similar financral assets has been wnitten down as a result of an impairment loss, nterest ncome
i1s recognised using the original effective interest rate which was used to discount the future cashflows for the purpose of measuring
the impairment loss

If in a subsequent period, the amount of the Impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related to an objective event
occurming after the impairment was recognised (for example, being awarded a new coniract that matenally enhances future
cashflows), the previously recogrised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance for loan imparment The amount of the
reversal 1s recognised in the Income statement.

When a loan 1s deerned uncollectable, it s written off against the related allowance for loan impairment Recoveries recewved In
respect of loans previously written off are recorded as a decrease in the impairment losses on loans and advances and are recorded
in the Income statement in the year in which the recovery was made Loans subject to indwvidual impairment assessment whose
terms have been renegotiated, and which would have been past due or impaired had they not been renegotiated, are reviewed 1o
determine whether they are mpaired or past due

Impairment of available-for-sale assets

Avallable-for-sate assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 15 objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets 1s iImpaired, which requires judgement by management

For equity shares classified as avallable-for-sale, a significant or prolonged dechine in the far value of the security below its cost s
considered evidence of impairment If any such evidence exists the curnulative loss 1s removed from equity and recognised i the
income staterment. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value on an equity share classified as avallable-for-sale increases, the impairment
loss 15 not reversed through the income statement, but remains recorded in equity

Impairment of available-for-sale debt securities 1s based on the same critena as for all other financial assets I in a subsequent period
the fair value of a debt instrurnent classified as avallable-for-sale increases and the increase can be objectwvely refated to an event
occurming after the impairment loss was recognised in the income staternent, the impairment loss 1s reversed through the income
statement,

The loss recognised in the Income statement 1s the difference between the acquisition cost and current farr value less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recogmised in the income statement.

Debt/equity classification

Under IFRS the critical feature n differentiating a debt instrument from an equity instrument 1s the exastence of a contractual
obligation of the Group to deliver cash (or another financial asset} to another entity Where there 15 no such contractual obligation
the Group will classify the finangial nstrument as equity, otherwise 1t will be dassified as a liability and carmied at amortised cost.
Under IFRS the contractual terms of the transaction takes precedence over its econormic substance in determining how it should
be classified The terms of the perpetual debt instruments issued by the Group permit interest paymenis to be waved unless the
Company has paid a dradend in the previous six months and are therefore considered to be equity

Goodwill and intangible assets

i Goodwill in a subsidiary or an associated undertaking represents the excess, at the date of acquisition of an acquisition’s cost
over the far value of the Group s share of net identifizble assets acquired Identifizble intangble assets are those which can be
sold separately or which anse from tegal nghts regardless of whether those nights are separate

When the Group increases its stake in an entity which it already controls, any difference between the pnice paid for the
additonal stake and the increase in the net assets acquired by the Group 15 recognised directly in equity

Goodwill 1s stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses Goodwill 1s tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently when arcumstances indicate that s carrying amount 1s too high Goodwall s allocated to cash-generating units for
the purposes of impairment testing If the net present values of the cash-generating untts' forecast cashflows are insufficient
io support their carrying value then the goodwill is impaired Impasrment losses on goodwill are recogmsed in the income
statement and are not reversed

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entty sold

Negative goodwill in an associated or subsidiary undertaking represents the excess of net identifiable assets acquired over the
acquisition cost, and 1s recognised immediately in the income statement.
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I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

1 Intangible assets comprise acquired intellectual preperty rights and future serviong rights, which are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses The intellectual property rights are amortised on the basis of an estmated
useful ife of 10 years The future servicing rights are amortised over the servicing period as the fees from serviang are
recogrised Intangble assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 1s any objeciive evidence of
impairment If such evidence exists, an mparment test 1s performed and, if necessary, an mpairment charge 1s recognised in the
Income statement

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost Cost includes expenditure that 1s directly attributable to the acquistion of the
asset Including, in respect of leasehold improvements, costs incurred in prepanng the property for occupation (this includes rent
paid whilst the preparation work s undertaken)

Land 15 not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated usang the straght-line method to write down the cost of assets
to their residual values over their estmated useful lives, as follows

Computer equipment 2-5 years
Cars 3-5 years
Fixtures and fittings 3-10 years
Leasehold improvements 4-24 years

The assets residual values and useful Iives are reviewed, and adjusted If appropniate, at each balance sheet date

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amounts These gains and losses are recogrised
in the ncame staternent

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

At each balance sheet date or more frequently where events or changes In arcumstances dictate, property, plant and equipment s
assessed for ndications of impairment. If such indications are present, these assets are subject to an impairment review [f impaired
the carrying values of assets are written down by the amount of any impaiment and the loss is recognised in the income statement
n the penod in which 1t occurs A previously recognised impairment loss relating to a fixed asset may be reversed when a change

i crcurnstances leads to a change In the estimates used to determine the fixed asset’s recoverable amount.The carmying amount of
the fixed asset 1s only increased up 1o the amount that it would have been had the orginal imparment not been recognised

Finance and operating leases

Where the Group s the lessor

Finance leases

When assets are held subject to a finance lease the present value of the lease paymenits 1s recognised as a receivable The difference
between the gross recevable and the present value of the recervable 15 recognised as unearned finance income Lease Income 1s
recogrised in interest ncome over the term of the lease using the net nvestment method (before tax), which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return

Operating leases

Assets acquired for use by customers under operating lease agreements, including inibial direct costs incurred in negotiating an
operating lease, are capitalised and included in the relevant category of fixed assets Depreciation 1s charged on a straight-line basis
to write the value of the asset down to the expected residual value over 2 period consistent with other assets of a similar type

Operating lease income and the inmial direct cosis are recognised in other operating income on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease

Where the Group 15 the lessee

The Group has entered nto operating leases in respect of office premises The total payments made under operating leases are
charged to the income statement as operating expenses
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l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnise balances with anginal maturities of three months or less, ncduding cash and non-restricted
balances with central banks, certificates of deposit and loans and advances to banks

Pensions

The Group s posi-retrement benefit arrangements are described in note 23 The Group operates a number of pension and other
post-retirement benefit schemes, both funded and unfunded, of the defined benefit and defined contribution types For defined
contnbuvon schemes, the contnbunion payable in respect of the accounting peniod 1s recognised in the income statement

The defined benefit schemes are accounted for using the option permitted by the amendment made 1o IAS 19 Employee Benefits
whereby actuanal gains and losses are recognised outside the income statement and presented in the statement of comprehensive
incorne The amount recognised in the balance sheet In respect of defined benefit schemes is the difference between the present
value of the defined benefit obligation at the bafance sheet date and the fair value of the plan's assets, if any The defined benefit
oblgation s calculated annually by independent actuanes using the projected urut credit method The principal assumptions are set
out in note 23 The present value of the obligation 15 determined by discounting the estmated future cash outflows using interest
rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denorminated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms
to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension labilities

Long term employee benefits

The Group operates long term profit share schemes for the benefit of employees The costs of such schemes are recognised in the
income staternent over the period In which the services are rendered that give rise to the obligation Where the payment of profit
share 15 deferred untl the end of a specified vesting period, the deferred amount 15 recognised in the iIncome statement over the
period up to the date of payment ~

The Group has entered into cash-settled share-based payment transactions as part of the long term profit share schemes The fair
value of such awards are measured at the date they are made and remeasured at each reporting date Such awards are recognised
n the income statement over the vesting period until payment.

Taxation

Tax payable on profits and deferred tax are recogrised in the income statement except to the extent that they relate to tems that
are recognised in equity, in which case the tax s also recogrised in equity

Deferred tax 1s provided i full, using the balance sheet hability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabitiies and their carrying amounts. Deferred tax 15 determined using tax rates and laws that are expected to apply
when a deferred tax asset 1s realised, or when a deferred tax hability 15 settled

The principal temporary differences anse from deprecation of property, plant and equipment, deferred profit share arrangements,
revaluation of certain financial nstruments including dervative contracts and avallable-for-sale securrties, provisions for post-
retrement benefits and tax losses carried forward

Deferred tax assets, ncluding the tax effects of ncome tax losses avallable for carry forward, are only recognised where it 1s
probable that future taxable profits will be avaiiable against which the temporary differences can be utiised Deferred tax is not
provided on temporary differences arsing from nvestments in subsidiary undertakings and associzied undertakings, unless the
timing of the reversal of the temporary difference 1s controlled by a third party or it is probable that the difference will reverse in
the foreseeable future

Dividends

Drndends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the penod n which they are dectared by the Company’s shareholders at
the Annwal General Meeting or if earlier; when they are paid

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised only when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive} as a resutt of past events. In addrtion,
it must be probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and it must also be possible to
make a rehable estimate of the amount of the obligation
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| Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Provisions and contingencies (continued)

The Group recognises provisions in respect of onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derwved from a contract are
less than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract

Contingent lizbilies are possible obligations arising from past events whase existence wall be confirmed by one or more uncertain
flture events not wholly within the Group's control, or present obligations that are not recognised either because 1t 1s not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be reliably estmated
Contingent lizbilies are disclosed unless the possibility of a transfer of economic benefits s remate

Accounting judgements and estimates

The pregaration of financial siatements In accordance wath [FRS requires the use of certan crtical accounting estimates It afso
requires management to exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies

Valuation of financial assets and habilities

Fair value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a hability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm’s length transaction For financial instruments camed at far value, market prices or rates are used to determine fair value where
an active market exists (such as a recognised exchange), as 1t 1s the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument Market
prices are not, however avallacle for certan financial assets and habilities held or issued by the Group Where no active market
price or rate 1s avalable, farr values are estimated using present value or other valuation techniques, using nputs based on market
conditions existing at the balance sheet date

A description of the valuation techniques used, analysis of assets and habiliues carried at far value by valuation hierarchy, anc a
sensitvity analys:s of valuations not pnmanily based on observable market data, 15 provided in note 3 to the financial statements

Impairment of financial assets

Assets are assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets 1s impared If there 15 such objective evidence, and that this has a negative effect on the estimated future cashflows
from the asset, then an impairment loss s ncurred The amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of expected future cashflows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate

Portfclios of financial assets with similar economic characteristics where there 1s objective evidence to suggest that they contan
imparred assets but the individually impaired rtems cannot yet be identified, are collectively assessed fer imparment The collectvely
assessed impairment allowance 15 calculated on the basis of future cashflows that are estimated based on historical loss experience

The accuracy of the allowances made depends on how accurately the Group estimates future cashflows for speaific counterparty
allowances and provisions and the model assumptions and parameters used in determining collective allowances While this
necessarily snvolves judgement, the Group believes that its allowances and prowvisions are reasonable and supportable

Pensions

The defined benefit obligation 1s calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method and the
prncipal assumptions used are set out n note 23 The assumptions that have the greatest impact on the measurement of the
pension fund liability are those related to retal price nflation and the discount rate used For example a 05% fall n the discount
rate used would result n a £59 mithon increase in the measurement of the pension fund habiliies Similarty, a 0 5% increase n the
forecast rate of retal price inflation would result n a £42 million increase in pension fund liabilies

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets, ncluding those in relation to tax losses carmed forward, are only recognised where it s probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised After reviewing medium term profit
forecasts, as adjusted for tax purposes, the Group considers that there will be sufficient future profits against which these deferred
tax assets can be utiised

Goodwill

Goodwill 1 assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether it 1s impaired The assessment includes management
assumptions on future income flows and judgements ang on appropriate discount rates Management performs sensitwvity analysis of
these assumptions to support the valuation
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2. Financial Risk Management

2 | Strategy in using financial instruments

The use of financial Instruments 1s fundamental to the Group's banking and treasury actviies The Group provides a range
of lending products to its clients and funds these actwities by means of deposit-taking, mediurn term note 1ssuance and other
borrowings and uses dervatives principally to manage its exposure to interest raie and currency sk Further information on
derwative contracts and the Group's hedging strategies 1s set out in note |4 The key risks arising from the Group's activities
invohving financial instruments are as follows

®  Credit nisk — the nisk of loss arsing from client or counterparty defauit.
" Market nsk — exposure to changes in market vanables such as interest rates, currency exchange rates equity and debt prices

= Liquidity and funding risk — the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty In meeting cbligations assaciated with financial
habities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.

22 Credit risk

Credrt nsk arises from all exposures to clients and counterparties relating to the Group's fending, trading and investment actities
Lirnits on credit risk are set by the Group Management Commuttee and by the Credit Commutiee The Credit Commitiee reviews
concentrations and makes recommendations on credit decisions to the Group Assets and Lizbiies Committee Credit risk mits
are set, where appropnate, i respect of exposures to ndvdual chents or counterparties, to ndustry sectors and to countries

Exposure to credit nisk 15 managed by detaled analysis of client and counterparty creditworthingss prior to entenng into an
exposure, and by continued monitonng thereafter A significant propertion of the Group’s lending exposures 1s secured on property
or other assets, the Group monitors the value of any collaterat obtained The Group also uses netting agreements to resinct credt
exposure to counterparties For nternal monitorng purposes, credit exposure on loans and debt securities 1s measured as the
principal amount outstanding plus accrued interest. Credit exposure on denvatives 1s measured as the current replacement value
plus an allowance for the potential change in replacement value

The Credit Committee reviews credit exposures on loans and debt secunities on a quarterly basis and for this purpose they are
classified as follows

Category |
Exposures where the payment of interest or pancipal 15 not n doubt and which are not designated categones 2 to 5

Category 2

Exposures where the payment of interest or pnncipal 1s not in doubt, but which require closer observation than usuzl due 1o
some deterioration in the posmion of the client, for example poor trading results, difficutt condruiens in the chent’s market sector,
competrtive or regulatory threats, or the potential impact from currency or cther factors

Category 3

Exposures where there has been further deteroration in the position of the client Afthough the exposure s not considered to be
impared, the relationship requires close monitoring by the front office team

Past due but not imparred
Exposures that have faled to make a scheduled interest or principal repayment although full recovery 15 expected
Category 4

Exposures that are considered to be impared and which carry a provision against part of the loan Some recovery is expected to
be made

Category 5
Exposures that are considered to be imparred and which carry a full provision No significant recovery of value 1s expecied
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit rnisk {(continued)

a Credit risk exposure

The tables below disclose the maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date for financial assets with significant exposure
to credit risk, without takang account of collateral held or other credit msk mitigation Accounts recevable are treated as past due
when more than 90 days has elapsed since the invoice was Issued

Past due
Category Caregory Category butnot  Categories  Impairment Totat
b 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Group £000 £000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £000 £'000
At 3] March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543038 - - - - - 543038
Denvatives 25117 - - - - - 251017
Loans and advances to banks 156273 - - - - - 156273
Loans and advances to customers 491873 103721 126,786 1225% 158 829 (75804) 817664
Avallable-for-sale financial assets
- debt securbes 264008 125 - - 10891 (108%1) 264133
Commitments and guarantees 49,826 1013 4,708 - 1,206 - 56753
Accounts recenable 99,688 - K 3725 4,161 (3420) 104165
Total | 629,823 104,859 131,505 15,984 175,087 (90,115) 1,967,143
At 31 March 2011
Cash and balances at central banks 646535 - - - - - 646535
Denvatives 17144 - - - - - 17144
Loans and advances to banks 375066 - - - - = 375066
Loans and advances to customers 575061 106526 121728 44716 102113 (69038) 881,106
Availzble-for-sale financial assets
— debt securibies 448393 2,040 4100 - 34045 (29044) 459,534
Commitments and guarantees 21423 7979 4075 - 21 - 33498
Accounts receivable 101 888 7 - 3510 5772 (3.306) 107.871
Total 2,185,510 116,552 129,903 48,226 141,951 {101,388) 2,520754
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impared
Past due by Past due by
< 6 months > 6 months Total
Group £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2012
Loans and advances to customers 4093 8161 12,259
Accounts recevabie 799 2926 3735
Total 4,897 11,087 15,984
At 31 March 2011
Loans and advares to customers 14536 30180 _ 44716
Accounts recenable 1427 2,083 3510
Total 15,963 32,263 48,226
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22 Credit nsk (continued)

Past due
Category Category Category but not  Categones  Impairment Total
| 2 3 impaired 4and 5 allowance (net)
Company £'000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 3| March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543025 - - - - - 543,025
Dervatives 25117 - - - - - 25147
Loans and advances to banks 91,834 - - - - - 91834
Loans and advances to customers 455 401 103721 126,786 7334 159999 (72.561) 784680
Avalable-for-sale financial assets
— debt secunties 263883 125 - - 1089 (1o8sn 264008
Commitments and guarantees 24748| 1,013 4708 - 1206 ) - 254,408
Accounts recevable 76,572 - - 1,721 3700 (2.959) 79034
Tortat 1707313 104,859 131,494 9055 175,796 (86,411} 2,042,106
At 31 March 2011
Cash and balances at central banks 646,523 - - - - - 46523
Denvatives 17144 - - - - - 17,144
Loans and advances to banks 292357 - - - - - 292,357
Loans and advances to customers 551,330 106526 7 35510 98330 (6596%) 847 455
Available for-sale financial assets
— debt secunties 4481393 2040 4,100 - 34,045 (29,044) 459534
Comimutments and guarantees 551 966 7979 40 - 2l = et 041
Accounts recevable 83178 7 - 1679 1,881 {I 574) 85171
Total 2,590,8%1 116,552 129 903 37,189 134,277 (36587) 2,212,225
The table below analyses amounts past due but not impawred
Past due by Past due by
< & months > & months Total
Company £000 £'000 £000
At 3| March 2012
Loans and advances 1o customers ) 292 7042 7334
Accounts recevable 747 974 1721
Total 1,03% 80l6 9,055
At 31 March 2011
Loans and advances to customers R .a0* O nor . 33510
Accounts recevable 1189 490 1679
Tozal 7,602 29,587 37,189
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit nisk (continued)

b Collateral
The Group holds collateral against loans and advances to customers and debt securities

All nen-group commercial lending 1s secured Collateral 1s split by type, as erther specific or general

Specific collateral 1s readly dentifiable, the majonty of which will be charges over property or plant and equipment If necessary

there is a realistic possibility of both taking possession of and realising the collateral

General collateral will be more difficult to both identify and realise 1t will usually be a genera! floating charge over the assets of a
business, and 1s typically attached to leveraged finance assets It 15 not practicable to ascribe a specific value to this collateral

Unimpaired loans (levels | to 3) are covered by both specific and general collateral Unimpaired amounts covered by specific
collateral ncludes property lending of £275 million, of which over 0% has specific coliateral in excess of the amount advanced, and
asset based lending of £122 million which 15 fully collateralised Where a loan 15 deemed to be impaired (level 4 and 5 assets), the
fevel of the impairment charge 1s primanily driven by any expected shortfall in the collateral value, although it 1s also influenced by

the abilty of the borrower to service the dabt

Collateral 1s valued independently at the time the loan 1s made and periodically thereafter on a rolling basis Management are able
to roll forward a valuation for reporting purposes via a combination of specific knowledge of the property and the application of

general property indices

The table below gives an estimate of the fair value of collateral that could be realised by the Group as secunity aganst exposures to

customers that are individually impaired and past due but not impared

Past due Past due
but not Individualfy but not Indwidually
impared impaired impaired mpared
2012 1012 2011 011
£000 £000 £000 £000
Group

Property 3317 79433 25484 32263
Cebt and equity secunbies - 2,000 - 5494
Commercial vehicles and other equipment 3673 1,951 6,020 7038
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges 5212 22797 13981 14545
Other - 1545 - 2,267
Collateral held 12,202 107.732 45,485 61,609
Amount of exposures coltateralised (net of specific provisions) 12,259 112,835 44,716 67,691

Company
Property 2,065 74944 21529 35323
Debt and equity securities - 2000 - 5494
Commeraal vehicles and other equipment ~ 115 - 22N
Guarantees and fixed or floating charges 5212 22797 13981 14545
Other e - | 545 - 2269
Collateral held 7.277 101,401 35510 59.902
Amount of exposures collateralised {net of speafic prowisions) 7,334 106,504 35510 65,995
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22  Credit risk {continued)

< Forbearance

As refinancing and szle options are currently imited 1t 1s generally in the lender's and borrower's interest to extend certan facilioes
at maturity and not to foreclose on the secunty This assumes there are no underlying 1ssues regarding the borrower's ability to
continue te service the loan and the level of collateral 15 expected to be of sufficient quality to secure the principal

Unimpaired loans extended in this manner are not categorised as either past due or as renegotiated As at 31 March 2012, loans
with a carrying value of £228 5m had been extendad (2011 £293 1), all of which were property loans

There are a small number of loans which are overdue but not impaired pending an extension of maturity As at 31 March 2012
these amounted to £7 3m

Some loans were renegotiated on substantially different terms than before Typically these loans will include revised covenants and
higher margins to reflect higher credit risk as well as having extended maturities But for these renegotiations the loans would have
been deemed to have been impared As at 3| March 2012 the carry value of all loans renegotiated was £1046ém (2011 £111 é6m})

d Credit nsk concentrations

The Group monitors concentrations of credit risk by geographic location and by industry sector The following tables show an
analysis of credit nsk by location and by sector The location for loans and advances 1s determined by reference to the location of
the borrower; and debt securtiies are recorded based on the location of the 1ssuer of the security In the current chmate exposures
to the weaker eurozone economies are closely moniored by senior management and the Group has no sovereign debt exposure
to penpheral eurozone economies

Within “other Europe' available-for-sale financial assets are £53 million of assets with exposure to the weaker eurozene countries
Of this, £40 million relates to a portfolo of residential mortgage backed securities Each asset is top tier in its respective structure
benefiting from substantial credit support from the subordination of Jumior netes and excess reserve balances The remaning £13
million relates to collateralised loan cbligations, which have some exposure to the weaker economies

Loans to custerners include £24 million of loans to the weaker eurozone economies, all of which have been subject to close review
The Group expects to realise the carrying value of these loans

The sector analysis 1s based on Global Industry Classification Standards and includes dervatives, loans and advarices to banks, loans and
advances o customers, debt securties, commitments and guarantees
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22 Credit sk {(continued)

UK and
Channel Other US and

Islands Europe Canada Other Toual
Credit risk by location £000 £'000 £000 £'0600 £'000
Group
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543025 13 - - 543038
Denvatves 13,422 11,671 o 24 - 25117
Loans and advances o banks ] 53076 69 061 8152 25884 156273
Loans and advances to customers ) " 601981 187134 15063 13486 817664
Avallable for-sale financial assets - debt securities 138265 113954 10077 1,837 264,133
Commitments and guarantees sa3 nw - - 56753
Accounts recenable T 53714 31018 6,198 13235 104165
Total 1,446 956 426,131 39614 54,447 1,967,143
At 31 March 2011
Cash and balances at central bartks 646523 12 - - 646535
Derwatves 11383 §.76I - - 17,144
Loans and advances to banks o ) 831 no 254T9|2 25 Y 018 375066
Loans and ad:fances to"custc")mers 604 9;:7 i 24 I-42—4 21 .35_6 o I3"359 88l !“Oué
Avallable for-sale financial assets - debt securities 342,665 87820 23354 5695 459534
Commnmem:s and guarantees 105%6 i 17,089 777 5036 33498
Accounts recevable S 55239 37975 4487 10070 10787
Total 1,754,484 644,993 49,999 71,278 2,520,754
Comparny
At 3| March 2012
Cashand balances at central banks L } 543025 - - N 543025
T T T e e T T D
Lo;n; and a&;la;lces to bank:z T 4;6—'% 33390 8252 T —576 91 83.‘:
Loans and advances to customers _ 567956 188,175 15063 |§.486 784680
Avalable-for-sale financial assets - debt secunties T 182s 1389 10077 18¥ 264008
Commiments and guarantees 241045 333 < - 2154408
Accounts recewable ] ) 928 17217 5010 7539 79,034
Total | 602,597 377,645 18426 23,438 1,042,106
At 31 March 2041
Cathand balancesat cenral anks o5 - : ERC
Bwen\;“tr:es - e ; IEE; 5761 - L 17 Hi
Loans and advances 10 banks T T T T Taeers T Tanass 5 © 9357
Loans and advances to customers 570344 W% 21356 13359 847455
Avalble-for-sale financl assets - debt securmes | 342665 87820 23354 5695 459534
Commiments and guarantess  s4l0s\ 17177 777 503 564041
Accounts recenable 50867 27.458 445 242 85,171
Total 2,242,808 592,478 43,937 2700 1.962,225
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22  Credit risk {continued)

2012 2011
Credit risk by industry sector £ 000 £000
Group
Energy - 6745
Matenals o7 . T 60739 90,309
Industnals w89 187 97,763
Consumer discretionary 5628 1053282
Consumer staples } } o _7q4|0 43137
Heathcare T s ’ 15378 15996
Financial (see below) ) u i —345~ 020 618584
Real estate (see below) 373121 423682
IT and telecomns 21200 41 836
Uthtes S " . ’ ) T T 3639
Governments an:j C"entr'al Banks ) ’ o " ’ T ~6;9!;,'935 868774
Private persons 21988 22466
Related party loans commutments and guarantees 67872 74 650
Total |1 862978 1,412883
Company
Energy - 6745
Materals 56743 86955
ndustals oo ’ 39030 $3015
C(;nsumerudlscr;monar): o T o - ) 5'2.67;6 66673
Consumer staples 55,052 4,466
Health care L L. o 9L5|4 ) 3989
Financial (see below) I ) s 535934
Real estate (see below) o 371983 01492
IT and telecoms ) ~2I 200 41 856
Utlives ) N - 3,639
Comernens g Conitans. T © adm i
Prmeperons | T T T T e T s
Related ;")arty Ioa:;s. Eomn;nments and g:aramne&s o ’ ’ 365.—05—‘-9— 685,154
Total 1,963,072 21827054
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
22 Credit nisk (continued)

Financial and real estate sector exposures may be analysed as follows

Group Company

2012 2011 012 010
Financial sector £000 £000 £'000 £000
Short term mterbank exposures ) 156273 375066 91834 292357
Investment grade secunties ’ ) 55,758 i 182 39"3 55 755 182398
Cash/investrent backed lending 75,503 - 75503 -
Finance companies ) ) i 2170 16688 2170 3 16,688
Other o ) 51316 444} 51189 44,491
Total 348,020 618,584 283,454 535,934

Short term interbank lending and investment grade securtties are held for iquidity management purposes

Group Company
2012 2011 012 W01
Real estate sector £'000 £000 £000 £000
Senior loans 305638 348115 304480 345925
Subordinated/mezzanine loans 67483 75567 67,483 75567
Total 373,121 423,682 371963 421,492

Real estate exposures are generally supperted by ncome generated by a farge number of tenants from a wide variety of industry
sectors Exposures are broadly evenly split between the majar property types (retail, office and industrial) and are located
predominantly within the UK. There are no material exposures to loans with elements of development financing

23 Market risk

Market risk arises as a resuft of the Groups activities in interest rate, currency and equity markets and compnses interest rate,
foresgn exchange and equity price nsk. Duning the year, exposure to market risk has continued to be small in relation to caprtal, as
trading actwties have been focused on servicing chent requirements rather than on proprietary nsk-taking Market nisk ansing in the
Company's subsidiary undertakings 1s immatenal

Limits on market risk exposure are set by the Group Assets and Liabilliues Committee Menitoring of market nsk imits and
determination of trading profits are undertaken daily, independently of the dealing area. Rusk limits are complemented by other
measures and controls. including stress testng to estimate the losses that could occur when markets behave in unusually volatile
ways and with little hquidity

Market risks associated with treasury and equity posiions are described below with a descripbon of nsk management and the levels
of nisk,
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

23 Market nisk (continued)

Treasury

Market nsk in treasury actvities anses from interest rate and foreign exchange positions Foreign exchange and interest rate
contracts are predominantly used for hedging purposes Risk is monstored dally using a sensitivity-based va'ue at nisk approach
which determines the effect of changes in market price factors, including currency prices, nterest rates and volatlities on posiions
Shifts In market price factors and correlations are calculated weekly, or more frequently i turbulent markets using the industry
standard of 99 per cent probability over a ten day holding period for all nsks except currency position risk, which 1s measured using
a 99 per cent probability over a one day holding period The market risk figures below are derved from weekly {igures

12 months to 31 March 2012 12 months to 31 March 2011
Average High Low Average High Low
Company £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000
Interest rate nisk 474 2006 191 480 912 244
lgormgn exchar;ge n;k ) _ 19 85 | ) 18 79 2
Total value at risk 493 2,091 192 498 991 148

The main assumption used in the calculation 1s that price factors are normally distributed This 1s a common assumption in value at
risk calculations but 1s known to be tenuous, particularty for nterest rates and volatilities, and 1s one of the reasons for the use of a
high probability over a long holding peried

Equities

The Group has expasure to equity price risk through holdings of equity investments Each position 1s approved by senior
managerment and 15 monitored on an indvicual basis The table below shows the Group's equity price nisk by locaton

UK and
Channel Other US and
Islands Europe Canada Total

Equity price risk by location £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Group
At 31 March 2012
Equity invesiments 53512 54431 631 108,544
At 31 March 201
Equity invesiments 03 59563 2537 116,123
Eon;pany T T ) o o I ’ ’
At 31 March 2012
Equrty nvestments 52104 5443) &0l 107 136
Atlnl March 20F1 ’ i i ST o T T Tt
Equity invesiments 52,190 58,743 2537 113470

The equity exposure to other Europe consists principally of minonty investments held in other Rothschild Group companies
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

23 Market risk (conunued)

If the price of all the equibes were to fall by 5 per cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the income

staterment of £ril and a charge to equity of £4,125000 (2011 £nil and £4,297,000 respectively}, and for the Company there would

be a post-tax charge to the income statement of £nil and a charge to equity of £4,071,000 (2011 £nil and £4 198 000 respectively)

Similarly, if the price of all the equities and of those equriies on which dervative nstruments are dependent were to nse by 5 per |
cent, then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the income statement of £nil and a credit to equity of £4,125,000
(2011 £nil and £4,297,000 respectively), and for the Company there would be a post-tax credit to the income statement of £nil
and a credt to the equity of £4,071,000 (2011 £nil and £4,198,000 respectively}

Currency risk

The table below summanses net exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk. measured by reference to the foreign currency
exposures of monetary assets and liabities after taking account of posibons in dervatwves

Group Company
Long/{Short) Long/(Short)
2012 011 2012 2001
£ 000 £000 £'000 £000
USE } ) ) 6824 24366 (87 2%
Euro 1,821 {1049) 1821 (1314
Other 6.233 1053 {1515 325

If the value of these currencies fell by 5 per cent against sterhng, then for the Group there would be a post-tax charge to the
income statement of £558 000 (2011 £1,252,000) and for the Company there would be a post-tax gain to the income statement
of £11,000 (2011 £37,000)

If the value of these currencies rose by 5 per cent against sterling then for the Group there would be a post-tax credit to the
income statement of £558,000 (2011 £1,252,000} and for the Company there would be a post-tax charge to the income
statement of £11000 (2011 £37000)
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

23 Market risk {(continued)

Interest rate risk

The following table summanses exposure to interest rate nsk by showing the impact on the fair value of interest-beanng assets and
habilties, and of interest rate derivatives 1l base interest rates in each currency shown moved up or down by | per cent This table
includes all nterest rate nsk, ncluding that within the treasury and banking businesses and also the structural nterest rate exposure
that arose from the reinvestment of shareholders’ funds

Group Compary
3 Euro uss £ Eurc us$
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
At 31 March 2012
1% (673) €45 319 (483) 645 329
-1% 673 (653) (333 483 {653) (333 .
At 31 March 201 |
1% (3412 1,717 407 (3258) 1,717 407
-1% 3460 (1727) {413) 3306 (1.727) (443)

24 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk 1s defined as the nisk that an entity cannot meet its cash obligations as they fall due Liquicity nsk arses prinaipally from
the mismatch of contractual maturtties of assets and liabilities inherent in the business, including contingent liabilties

The Group 1s subject to both an internal liquidity policy, which has been reviewed and approved by the Group Assets and Liabilities
Committee and external regulatory requirements  Liquidity 1s measured on a behaviourally adjusted basis and on a stressed

basis. The stressed behaviour of assets and habilities can, in certan scenarios, be more adverse than their contractual maturrty (for
example, loans advanced to customers may not be repaid on their contractual matunity dates)

Liquidity 1s monitored daily independently of the front office Treasury staff responsible for day-to-day lquidity management.

The Group measures its iquidity risk quantitatvely agamst a biquidity Coverage Ratio (“LCR ') hmit w1 ine with the requirements of
the FSA s iquidity regme The LCR considers the Group's eligible “Buffer assets against the cumulative net cash flows payable under
its most severe stress test Only those assets of the highest quality can be treated as elgible for inclusion in the LCR.

The Group's nternal iquidity policy requires it to keep an LCR in excess of 100% at the [-month time horizon At 31 March 2012
the LCR was significantly in excess of this intemal as well as FSA regulatory requirements

The tables below analyse the Group's financial assets and labiliies based on contractual maturity
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

24 Liquidity risk (continued)

Demand/ No fixed

next day 2 days -3m Im-lyr > tyr maturity Total
Group €000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £1000
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543038 - - ) - - 543038
Loans and advances to banks 110330 41400 &2 3891 - 156273
DCervatves 1 369 1227 3878 ) 18 6:13 - ) 517
Loans and advances to customers 1520 02031 198866 412058 29811) 817664
Avallbie-for sale financial assets - 121211 871 142,051 108,544 372677
Other . 1793 00687 163 7 - mes
Toaal 691,050 466,556 205,880 576715 78733 2018934
Deposits by banks (60787 8516 8836 _ - 178,139
Customer deposits 74,640 213078 90347 707767 - 1085812
Dervatves ) - 1258 sl4 " 2494 - " 4366
Debt securities in ssue 83 365 58355 - - - 141720
Other ) 1634 11292 - T - 12926
Total 320,426 292,499 99,797 710261 14298
Ar 31 March 2011
{Cash and balances at central banks 646535 - - - — 646,535
Loans and advances 1o banks 126740 243656 752 3918 - 375066
Denvatives T 8 " 5998 6954 4184 - (7144
Loans and advances 1o customers 9423 87.824 270626 52302 @o788) 881106
Avatable-forsale finanaial assets 5002 122,833 194 653 137,046 16123 575657
Other ’ ’ - 94,081 13790 - T T 107871
Total 807 708 554,392 486,775 668,169 86335 2403379
Deposis by banks 159 338 5000 4175 7849 - 176362
uReu:purchase agr:sementsu u - 41708 - - - 41,708
Customer deposis 137978 165380 529076 402866 T 1235300
Dervauves 13 2,439 1524 9,599 . 14575
Debt securtties in issue - - 310.44% 150,302 - 460,751
Other ’ - 54503 - - - 54503
Total 297,329 269,030 846 224 570616 — 1983199
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)
24  Ligudity risk (continued)

Demand/ No fixed

next day 2 days -3m Im-lyr > lyr maturity Total
Company £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £7000 £'000
At 31 March 2012
Cash and balances at central banks 543,025 - - - - 543025
Loans and advances to banks 58,488 33346 - - - 91834
Derwvatwes 1,369 1227 3878 18643 - 251417
Loans and advances to customers 34520 187322 176545 415099 (28806} 784,680
Avallable-for-sale financial assets - 121211 871 141926 107 136 371,144
Cther 1,667 771367 - - - 79034
Total 639069 420,473 181,294 575668 78330 1 894,834
Deposits by banks 160,787 B516 8836 - - 178139
Customer deposits 90,799 271433 90346 707767 - 1 160345
Derwatives - 1,258 614 2494 - 4366
Debt secunties in 1ssue 83365 - - - - 81355
Other 1,634 11235 - - - 12869
Total 336 585 291,442 99,796 710,261 - 1,439,084
At 31 March 2011
Cash and balances at central banks 646523 - - - - 646523
Loans and advances to banks 82,823 202534 - - - 292357
Derwvatives 8 5998 6954 4,184 - 17 144
Loans and advances to customers 29571 74992 243578 528120 (28806} 847,455
Avallable-for-sale financial assets 5002 122833 194653 137,046 113470 573004
Other - 85 171 - - - 8571
Total 763,927 498528 445 |85 669,350 84,664 2,461,654
Deposits by banks 159171 5000 4,175 7849 - 176,195
Repurchase agreements - 41708 - - - 41 708
Customer deposits 151,897 165377 834523 464755 - 1,614552
Derwatives i3 2419 2507 9599 - 14538
Debt securtbies in 1ssue - - 3000 88413 - 93413
Other S 54446 - - - 54,446
Tortal 311,081 258 950 846,205 570,616 - 1,996,852
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

25 Matunty of financial habilities

The following tables shaw undiscounted contractual cash flows, indluding interest, payzble by the Group and the Company on
financial liabilsties, analysed by remaning contractual matunty a the balance sheet date Loan commitments and guarantees are
nchuded at the earliest date they can be drawn down or called upon Ths table does not reflect the iquidity posttion of the Group

or Company

Demand/ 2 days -3m

next day Im-lyr lyr-Syr > Syr Total
Group £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
At 31 March 2012
Degosnts by banks 150800 8574 G149 o 92 - 178615
Customer deposits 74891 219924 106930 T8 40322 1171345
Debt securtbes in issue 86120 58612 - - - 144732
COther habiles 1,634 11,292 - - - 12,926
Total 323,445 298,402 116079 729370 40,322 1,507,618
Loan commitments and guarantees - 56753 - - - 56,753
At 31 March 2011
Deposits by banks 159,339 5035 4223 7947 - 176544
Repurchase agreements - 41755 - - - 41755
Customer deposits 138272 {73513 551 602 417830 33739 1314956
Debt securtties in 1ssue - 1058 311,567 154310 - 466935
Cther hzbilites - 54,503 - - - 54503
Total 2976110 175,864 B67.392 580,087 33,739 2054693
Loan commitments and guarantees - 33498 - - - 33498
Company
At 3| March 2012
Deposits by banks 160800 8574 9149 92 - 178615
Customer deposits 91070 278536 106,930 725278 40322 1,246,136
Debt securties in issue ) 86 120 . - - . 86,120
Otherlabilves ’ 1 634 (1,235 - _ - 12,869
Total 339,624 298,345 116079 729370 40,322 1,523,740
Loan commitments and guarantees - 254,408 - - - 254 408
At 31 March 2011
Depostsbybanks 159172 503 423 947 = 176377
Caprtrasesgesmms T T T gy LT T i
Customer deposits T T s (7aes | @sEI08 48082 BTH_ 169433
Debt securtues n 1ssue T o e i 50_60m N m9 1319 C _ :_‘25._3_72
Other labites T T saaas T T LT T e
Total 311,368 275,804 867,391 580,088 33739 2 068,390
Loan commitments and guarantees - 564041 - - - 564041
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2. Financial Risk Management (continued)

26 Capital management
The Company's capital management policy 1s to ensure that it 1s strongly capritalised and compliant with regulatory requirements

The Company's regulator 1s the FSA who sets and monitors capital requirements for UK regulated financial institutions A firm's
mimmum regulatory capital 15 derved from a combination of the requirements from Pillar | and Pdlar 2 rules Pilar | sets out the
rinimum eapital requirements required to meet credi, market and operational risk, Pillar 2 lays down a supervisory review process
to evaluate an Institution’s own internal process to assess its own capitat needs iIncluding capital for nsks not covered by Pillar |

The credit sk capital requirement that the Company. and certain other subsicharies which are part of its solo-consolidated group,
are required to hold 15 largely determined by their balance sheets and off-balance sheet positions weighted according to the credit
rating and type of exposure to counterparties Processes are n place to ensure compliance with the minimum caprtal requirements
set by the FSA

An annual Internal Caprtal Adequacy Assessment Process ("ICAAP”) which is subject to FSA review, is also undertaken to review
the risks and caprtal requirements of the business The Group’s risk management processes are designed to ensure that all nsks are
identified and that they are covered by capital or other appropriate measures

The table below summanses the composition of regulatory capital for the sole-consolidated group at 31 March, as reported
to the FSA

2012 2011
£m £m

Tier | capital
Called up share capital 577 577
Share |:_)re;n|l-.|m accour:t ) o i ’ o o T -979 —979
Retained earnings and other reserves ) 248 2590
Pension fund valuation adjustment ) o 296 594
Deduc;lons Erc;m tier I-ca—plta—I S S o o m(4"}) ) —(4 8)
Total ver | capital 4053 4692

Tier 2 capizal
Perpetual subordinated notes 1243 1243
Collective provisions ) ) ) ) ) 2_9—7 ’ 258
Other tems . ) 3 ) . L 03 } 51
Deductions from ter 2“ caprta]" ) ) C T i ~(6 3
Total tier 2 capreal 1543 1529
Total uer | & 2 capizal 5596 622.1
Deductions from tedal of uer | and ter 2 capital® (164 4) (1680)
Capital Resources 3952 454 |

* Deducuons from total ter | and ter 2 capital anse from equity or loan swestments n/to subsidianes or cther related partes.
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Farr value 1s the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or a hability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an
arm's length transaction For financial instruments carried at far value market prices or rates are used to determine that far valug
where an active market exasts (such as a recognised exchange), as it 1s the best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument.
Market prices are not, however, avallable for certan financial assets and liabilities held or issued by the Group Where no active
market price or rate 15 avalable, far values are esumated using present value or other valuation techriques, using Inputs based on
market conditions existing at the balance sheet date The valuation may be derived from quotations received from vanous sources
Where the market 15 illiquid, the quotations may not be supported by prices from actual market transactions

Valuation techniques are generally applied to over the counter dervative transactions and unfisted debt and equity securtties

The most frequently applied pricing models and valuation techniques include discounted cashflow techriques and option valuation
models The values derived from applying these techriques are significantly affected by judgements made on the choice of valuation
model used and the assumptions made concerning factors such as the amounts and tiring of future cashflows discount rates,
volatiity and credit qualty

The methods adopted to determine the fair value of each type of finaneral asset or kability are summarised befow

®  Cash and balances at central banks, loans and advances to banks and deposits by banks The far values of these instruments
are matenally the same as therr carrying values due to their short term nature

®  {oans and advances to customers have been reviewed and thew terms and pricing compared to recent similar transactions.
Where a material difference in terms and/or pricng has been observed, or where there 15 any other indication that the fair
value of the asset differs matenially from s carrying value, the disclosed far value has been adjusted accordingly

®  Repurchase agreements and amounts due to customers The far values of these instruments are determined by discouniing
the future cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for the appropriate credit spread

= Debt securities in 1ssue Far value 1s determined using quoted market prices where available, or by discounting the future
cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for the appropriate credit spread

= Other financial assets and habilities Farr value 1s considered to be the same as carrying value for these assets

= Derivatives and avarlable-for-sale financial assets are carried in the balance sheet at far value, usually determined using market
prices or valuations provided by third parues Debt secunties or unlisted equity securries for which no price s avalable are
valued by discounting expected future cashflows at market interest rates adjusted for appropriate credit spreads
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities (continued)

Financial assets and labilities carried at amortised cost

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
2012 2012 2011 20H
Group £000 £000 £00 £00
Financial assets
Loans and advances to customers 812,667 759193 881106 ?’99 I3‘1
Financiat 1Iablllt|e; ’ ) o o
Deposits by banks 178,139 178139 176362 176,362
Repu;thase agreements ) ) - - i 41708 41708
Due to customers . T 085832 1092585 1235300 1240826
Debt secunties in issue 141,720 141734 460751 459847
Other financial lizbilties 7612 76I—2 54,503 54503
Company
Financial assets
Loans and advances 1o customers 779683 727834 847,455 765483
Financiat fiabilities o
Deposis by banks 178 139 178,139 176 195 176,195
};\eptnjrc"h;;e"agr:ee;q:ents o ) - i - 4 I-'iOB i 41 7'“0@
Due to customers o T 1 1s034s T 1167098 1616552 1622078
Debt secunties in issue 83,365 83379 93413 93415
Financial assets and habilities carried at fair value
Carrying value Measured

equal to using

fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
Group £000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 3| March 2012
Financial assets
Finanoal assets held for trading 7069 47 7022 -
Financal assets held for n;k rpanagement purposes ) h 23045 o —— - o 23045 ) -
Avalable-for-sale financil assets - T nem 239098 52,155 81424
Total 402,791 239,145 82,222 81424
Financial liabihities
Financal labiives held for rading _ .- - LA R0 o
Finanoal habihtes held for nsk management purposes . 2146 T ~2 146 -
Other financial Ila.bﬂ—mes ) ) 5314 T 5314 -
Total 9,680 - 9,680 -
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

Carrying value Measured
equal o using
fair value Level | Level 2 Level 3
£'000 £'000 £ 000 £000

At 31 March 201)
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 3549 7 3532 o -
Financial assets —he\d for risk management purposes | 3.595 - 13,595 -
Avallable-for sale financial assets ) 575,657 424759 70449 80 449
Total 592,801 424,776 87.576 80,449
Financral habilities
Financial hatihibes held for trading 2798 - 2,798 -
Financial labihties held for nsk management purposes 11777 - 11,777 -
Toual 14 575 - 14575 -
Comparny
At 3} March 2012
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 706% 47 7022 -
Financial assets held for nsk management purposes 13045 - 23045 -
Avalableforsale financal assets ’ 371,144 " 237565 52,155 81 424
Total 401 258 237612 82212 81 424
Financial iabiities
Finangial hatnhves held for trading 2220 _ - 2220 . -
Hnar;claluflabllnzes held —for risk ma—na.gen;t;n; p[jrpc—)ses o 2146 -7 2 146 -
Toal 4366 - 4,366 -
At 31 March 201§
Financial assets
Financial assets held for trading 3549 17 3532 -
Financal assets held for nsk management purposes 13595 - EE -
Avalable forsale financial assets 573004 T i 70409 7 g0449
Total 590,148 422,123 87,576 80,449
Financial habilivies
Financal katuliies held for trading 2798 - 2798 -
Financeal fabdives held“;o; r:s“k managermnent purposes T 1—I~ ;40 Co T ) "I I“';'40 -
Total 4538 - 14538 -
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3. Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities {continued)

Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) In active markets for identical assets or labilibes

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset or hability, erither directly (e as
prices) or indirectly {ie denved from market data to a significant extent) An example would be an instrument valued using a pricef
earnings multiple of a comparable gquoted company

Level 3 Inputs for the assei or liability that are not based pnmanly on observable market data (unobservable inputs) Typically
this will be used for Instruments with uncertain cashflows and the valuation will therefore depend upon the expected cashflows,
estmated matunity and the discount factor used

Assets measured at fair value based on Level 3

There were nc significant transfers between assets valued at Level | and at Level 2 in the year The movements in assets valued
using Level 3 valuation are as follows

Group and Company

2012 2011
Available-for-sale financial assets 000 £000
Ax 1 April 80,449 77.946
Total gains and (losses)
- n income statement (198) ]
— through other con;prehenswe income ) ) I“.l‘"OZ 2505
Sefﬂemsants {19 (202)
Exch;nge movements ) ’ S T o o 88 ) " 285
At 31 March 81,424 80,449

Total losses of £196,000 (2011 £85 000) were included in the ncome statement in respect of assets held at the end of the
reporting period

A sensitivity analysis has been performed on the cashflows of the assets valued with a Level 3 methodalogy These have been flexed
to assume that erther 10 per cent more or 10 per cent less cash s uniformly recerved over the life of the investment The effect that
these varations would have on the far value of the assets 15 summarised below:

2012 2011
Group and Company £'000 £000
C:J?E{‘lt fa:r“vaju"e . ) . ) o L 81424 80449
Cashflow +109%.addition to far value T S S T s
Cashflow -10%. reducuon in far value 8143 8043
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4. Net Interest Income

2012 2011
£000 £'000
Interest and similar tncome
Loans and advances 71,800 74694
Avalable for sale financal assets } L ) 4 5344_ L 7578
Other ) o7 T T 0 5
76354 82277
Interest expense and stmilar charges
Amounts due to banks and customers o S L 47131 ) 533”’5
Debt securties in 5sue 11827 10792
58,958 63,957

Induded wathin interest income 1s £5,083,000 (2011 £3,602,000) in respect of interest Income acerued on impaired financoal assets.

5. Net Fee and Commission Income

2012 2011
£'000 £000

Fee and commission income
Banking and credrt-related fees and commissions 3332 3,381
Fees for adwsory work and cther services 335215 371070
Oterfees T o T 16444 9667
354991 384,118

Fee and commission expense
Global financal adwsory fees payable . } ) ; 22497 24,563
Other fees payable T T s 3
22,951 24776

Global financial advisory fees payable represent fees paid to other members of the Rothschild group where the Company has
worked in collzboration with another group company in 2 transaction, or fees paid to any subcontracted parties outside the

Rethschild group
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6. Net Trading Income

2012 2011
£000 £000
Foreign exchange gains 1,362 1717
Interest rate mnstruments — trading i o oI N 5¢
Interest rate instruments — hedging T . @19) (30)
Fair value movements 1478 397
Equities i i o i oo i T -3- i T 136
1,958 2,216

Net trading iIncome arises from movements in the fair value of financial assets held for trading and from hedging strategies The
following activities give rise ta net trading income

= Trading in foreign exchange spot forward and option contracts, loans nterest rate futures, swaps and forward rate agreements
u  Holding equities for trading purposes

Far value movements represent the changes in the fair value of synthetic CDO investments attnibutable to embedded
credit derwvatives

Gains and losses on the ineffective portion of designated hedging relationships are also recognised in net trading ncome

7. Other Operating Income

2012 2001

£'000 £000

Operating lease income ) L ) o N 6992 _ 7055
R—EHTB[IT;EOITIE T T ST o i - |"05 4.750
Dradend income } . o o 1,800 1724
Gain on disposal of fixed assets S C ) E o3
Profit on drsposal of subsidanes . T .
Gains less losses from avafable-for sale financial :;ssets T 2510 (107
Other 7856 2627
19,939 15,612
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8. Operating Expenses

2012 011
Note £000 £000
Staff costs 9 251,942 274752
Admsmslr;trv; jDq)en:;t;s ) 68371 69193
320,313 343,945
The auditor's remuneration was as follows
2012 011
£ 000 £'000
Audtt fees relating to the Company 241 235
Audtt fees relating to subsidiary undertakings 557 526
798 761
Remuneration payable to the auditor and s associates for non-audit work was as follows
012 011
£ 000 £'000
Non audit services pursuant to legislation including :ntenm reviews 43 43
Tax services 90 176
Accountl;g advice o i i T o ) i - 65 32
Other work i 1l i -
209 251
9. Staff Costs
2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
Note £000 £.000 £'000 000
Salanes (excluding profit share) ) 106503 62215 95910 L 55847
Social secunty costs T 1202 7158 97N 8415
Safibenefitsand other st costs o 73504 16269 16768 12240
Pension costs
- Defined benefit pfans 23 2636 2487 ) }.68} . 2.5330
- Defined contnbution plans 3 4094 2059 4ae7 A%
Post-reUreme;t benefits e "‘ﬁé 877 862
Seaff costs (excluding profit share) 150,152 91,526 129,975 80,629
Drrectors and employees annual profi hare Loz 4625 2303 7107
Long term profit share schemes. 18878 18497 21,744 21306
Directors and employees’ profit share 101,790 « 64751 144,777 92,381
Total staff costs 251,942 156 277 274,752 173,010
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9. Staff Costs (continued)

The number of persans employed as at 31 March was as follows

2012 2012 2011 2011

Group Compary Group Company

Global Financial Advisory ) } 677 330 ) 748 435
Bantang i i 209 52 po 60
Support and other 239 239 216 216
1,125 68 1,185 7

The average number of persons employed during the year ended 31 March was as follows

20102 2012 2011 2011

Group Company Group Company

Globa! Financial Adwisory 718 412 747 434
Bankng 219 54 218 5
Support and other T T m m 20 20
1,170 699 1,185 713

Long term incentive schemes

As part of its varable pay strategy, the Group operates long term incentve schemes for the benefit of employees These schemes
consist of deferred cash bonuses and, for certan key staff, deferred bonuses based on the share value of Rothschild Continuation
Holdings AG { RCH "), a parent of the Company

The cash awards are paid one, two and three years after the year of the award, and the expense 1s recogrised over the two, three
and four year periods from the start of the year of the award to the date of payment. These awards are pad on the condrtion that
the recipient s still an employee of the Group

For certain key staff in positions of control within the Company, the deferred award 1s partly based on the future value of a fixed
number of RCH shares The objective 15 to link their reward with the performance of the Group In addition to the requirement to
reman employed by the Group, these awards may also be cancelled \f

®  There s reasonable evidence of employee misbehavicur or matenal error, or

®  The Company, or the relevant business unit, suffers a material downturn in financial performance, or

»  The Company, or the relevant business unit, suffers a material falure of nsk management, or

»  Reascnable evidence comes to ight which cafls into question the basts on which the original award was made

Deferred pay based on the value of RCH shares 1s accounted for as a cash-settled share based payment award The fair value of the
shares awarded as at 31 March 2012 was £2,810000 and the value of this is being spread over the service penod using the same
prnciples as the other deferred awards and 15 booked in the Income statement as part of the charge for long term profit share

RCH shares are not quoted, but therr value is determined each six months by an independent valuation

A commitment to employees exists In connection to deferred remuneration Some of this has not yet been accrued because it
relates 1o future service peried The amount of potential future payments that have not yet accrued 1s £15,227,000
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0. Tax

Tax charged to the income statement

012 2011

£'000 £000
Current tax
— Current pericd 5136 4507
- F;nor year"adjustmems i ) i ) ) T o (1652) (647)
Total current tax charge 3,484 3,860
Deferred tax
- Ongination and reversal of tming differences 8206 10966
- Pnt;r year adjust;'nems i . i . “ B (1399 7(;7
Total deferred tax charge 6,807 11,733
Total tax charged to income statement 10,291 15593
Tax on items {credited)/charged to ather comprehensive Income

2012 W01t

£'000 £ 000
Deferred tax on avadable-for sale finanaal assets {Is1) 3249
Current tax on available-for-sale financial assets - ) (267) o 8655
Deferred tax on cash flow hedges ) ) ’ 508 658
Deferred tax on actuanal gains and losses on defined benefit pe;|5|on schemnes o (12.359) I"O 241
Toral tax (credited)/charged to other comprehensive income {12,969) 22,803
Tax on items credited to equity

012 011

£000 £ 000
Current tax on distnbutions to holders of perpetual instruments 3,165 3311

The tax charged on income differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the standard tax rate as follows

2012 011

£ 000 £ 000
Profit before tax 14,922 45,855
Tax calculated at the UK corporation tax rate of 26% (2011 28%) o _ 9080 12839
Adustment to tax charge n respect of prioryears S ey
Income from associate recorded net of tax in p;()ﬁl before 1ax ) : o - {567 7244)
Non tax deductible expenses T R T s
Impact on deferred tax of corporation tax rate Ehange ) R :..“ :mw:w_ o ___2._5]4 ": m: ::7:0"22
Efect of diferent tax rates in other countres B T (862)
Income not subjedt 10 tax ) ’ CoT . - E486) . (589)
Previously unrecorded deferred tax now recognised E T B -
Other ’ ’ S ) (59 870
Total tax charged to income statement 10,291 15593

Further information about deferred tax 1s presented in note 22
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li. Group Profit Dealt with in the Financial Statements

of the Company

£10,092,000 (2011 £21922000) of the Group profit attnbutable to ordinary shareholders has been dealt with in the accounts
of the Compary As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the Company has not been

presented separately

{2. Loans and Advances

2012 2012 2011 200
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £.000 £000 £'000
Loans and advances to banks
Included in cash and cash equivalents* 15730 91,834 370,397 292,357
Other ) ) 4543 - 4669 -
156,273 91,834 375,066 292,357
*Loans and advances to banks includes reverse repurchase agreements of £75029000 (2011 £nil}
Loans and advances to customers
Loans and advances to customers — at amorbsed cost 888,471 852244 950 144 913424
Loans—and advances 1:1:>~ cusmme:s h—eI-d for S ’ T ST -
trading — at far value 4,997 4997 - -
Allowance for credt Josses T " Togsenw (256)) (69038) (65969)
B17.664 784,580 881,106 847,455
Loans and advances to customers include finance lease recevables as follows
2042 w011
Group £'000 £'000
Gross investment in finance leases, recervable
lyearorlss o o 52861 44026
SyearsorI;ssbmwerlyear" S T T o 81,499 66 668
Over 5 years 3.82—8 I.266
138 188 111,900
Uneamed future finance income on finance !eas::s i “ (22,399} (I812Ei}
Net investment in finance leases 115789 93,672
The net investment m finance leases may be analysed as follows
2012 2041
Group £'000 £'000
| year or less 44287 36874
~5;ears or less b:n:sver | year T e s o e mgSTO“ Im 55 §9I
OverSyears ) ) o 3401 77
115,789 93,672
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{2. Loans and Advances {continued)

The movement in the allowance for credit losses on loans and advances to customers 1s as follows

Group Company

Specific  Collective Total Specaific  Collective Total

£000 £000 £'000 £000 £ 000 £000

At | April 2011 39,250 19788 69,038 37,1 63~ 18 806 65,969
Charge to Income statement 11,425 23 1448 13761 - 13761
Amounts written off (7.203) - (7203) {6866) —  {eBed)
Recoveries - Tozas - 38 394 - 394
Exchange movements (697) - (697) (697) - (697)
At 31 March 2012 45,993 29811 75804 43,755 28,806 72,561
At 1 April 2010 55,740 34,418 90 158 52.296 13,806 86(_)I_2
Charge/{credit) to income statement ) 3454 i {4.630) i (] 176) 5387 (5.00(—}} ’ 387
Amounts wntten off {22.872) - (22872) (203000 —__ (20300}
Recovenes [ W) " S 3129 7 - 7
Exchange movements 201} - (201) (201) - (201}
At 31 March 2011 39,250 29,788 69038 37,163 28 806 £5 969

Following the amendments to 1AS 39 and IFRS 7,"Reclassification of

Financial Assets™ on | July 2008 the Company transferred from

avaltable-for-sale financial assets to foans and advances those financial assets to which the definion of loans and advances would

apply on the reclassification date On the reclassification date and on
the loans concerned to ther maturtty date or for the foreseeable fut
financial assets reclassified are as follows

31 Mareh 2012 the Group had the financial capacity to keep
ure The movements in the carrying value and far value of the

012 W0
Group and Company £ 000 £'000
Carrying value of assets reclassified at | April 216,921 168,726
Imparmenns after reclassification @er) @s12)
Sale and redemptions T T 5 V7, S T 54159
(Repayment)/drawdown of revohing credit faclities L . (1553 743
Amartisation of frozen ava:laki—e-(;nsale—reserve— T T T o 5037 o o 5987
Exchange and o"ther maovements o7 7373) u(l 464)
Carrying value of assets reclassified at 31 March 155,752 216,921
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12. Loans and Advances (continued)

2012 2011
Group and Company £'000 £ 000
Fair value of assets reclassified at | April 212 466 249,699
Sale and redemptions ) ) o (53605) 50615)
(Repayment)/drawdown of revaiving credit faclities ) ) (1,553} 743
Fair value"movements in the penod {1829) 14132
Exchange and other movements —(7 361) ) (1,493)
Farr value of assets reclassified at 31 March 148,118 212 466

As of the reclassification date, the net effective interest rates, after associated funding costs, on reclassified {inancal assets was

225 per cent

A revaluation gan of £1,846 000 would have been recognised in other comprehensive income in the year to 31 March 2012 had

the assets not been reclassified (2011 revaluation gain of £20,404,000)

After reclassfication the reclassified financial assets contributed the following amounts after associated funding costs, 1o profit

before tax

2012 2011
£000 £000
Net interest income 2188 3077
Impairment losses o “ o T T @ersy 2912)
Loss on disposals (275) (1674)
Loss before tax on reclassified financial assets {1,762) (I 509)

13. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets
012 2012 2011 2011
Group Compary Group Company
£000 £°000 £000 £'000
Debt securities 275024 274899 488 578 488578
Allowance for imparment . gossny (0891 “(@9.044) (29 044)
Total debt secunities - at fair vafue 264,133 264,008 459,514 459534
E‘}E}Hjﬁ“ﬂ:‘,ﬁes 1191t 110403 119 566 116813
Allowance fo"rnl;n;)“a;”n:\“emm T ) ST T —(§§6;) T 3 2&7)"" o 3 443)n ] (3 3435
Total equity securities = at far value 108544 107,136 116,123 113,470
Total available-for-sale financial assets 372,677 371,144 $75,657 573,004
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13. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (continued)

2012 2012 0 2011
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Availlable-for-sale financiat assets may be analysed as follows
Debrt securiuies
— Listed 263449 263,449 412,455 412,455
~ Unlisted B T T e 559 47079 47079
Total debt securities 264,113 264,008 459534 459,534
Equity securinies
- bisted 26,729 25513 33684 31,223
- Unlisted 81815 8l 62"3 82‘43‘3 82247
Total equity secuntes 108,544 107,136 116,123 113,470
Total avallable-for-sale financial assets 372677 371,144 575657 573004
Available-for-sale debt securties of £32.311,000 (2011 £79,159,000) were pledged as security for liabilities of the Company
Equity securities include shares in Pans Orléans SA Third New Court Limited and Rothschild Holding AG, fellow subsidiaries of
Rothschild Concordia SAS
The movement in the impairment allowance for avarfable-for-sale financial assets 15 as follows
2002 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Comparny
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Debt securites
At | April 29,044 29,044 26,433 26433
Charge to ncome statement } 1322 | ?22 2,866: 2:B§6
Amounts wrtten off T gssse) | (18956) - -
Exchange movements 519 (519) (255) (255)
At 31 March 10891 10,891 29,044 29 044
Equuty securities
Ar | Apnil 3,443 } o 3,343 2,953 1,853
Charge to ncome statement T - N Cos0 s
Exchange movements o (76} B (7_6)m i (10) o7 "(]Ef)
At 31 March 3367 3267 3443 3,343
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13. Available-For-Sale Financial Assets (continued)

2012 012 001 2011

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £000 £000

Ac 1 April 575,657 57:3 0(34_ 760.8|3_ _ 758,951
Addtions. ’ ) ST " 282,186 W054 ISTSM 356906
Disposals (sales and redemptions} (454,160) {453 340) (556 867) (556 866)
{Losses)/gans from changes in fm; value (16576) (16151) 30588 30424
Movernent in allowance for imparment 67 T @01y ‘Gion
Unwinding of discount 6157 (6157) (6673) (6:673)
Exchange differences (7546) (7539) (6637) (6,637)
Az 31 March 372,677 371,144 575,657 573,004

14. Derivatives |

The Group's use of financial Instruments, ncluding dervatives, s set out in note 2 A dervative 15 a financial instrument, the value

of which 1s derved from the value of another financial instrument, an index or some other vanable {the "undertying '} Typically the
underlying 1s an nterest rate a currency exchange rate or the price of a debt or equity securtty The majority of dervative contracts
are negohated as to amount, tenor and price between the Group and 1ts counterparties, and are known as “over the counter”
("OTC") derwvatives The remainder are standardised in terms of therr amounts and settlement dates and are bought and sold in
organised markets, and are known as exchange traded dervatives

Derwative instruments are carmed at fair value, shown in the balance sheet as separate totals of postve replacement values (assets)
and negative replacement values (liabilities) Positive replacement values represent the cost to the Group of replacing all transactions
with a far value in the Group's favour if the ¢ounterpartes default Negative replacement values represent the cost to the Group's
counterparties of replacing all their transactions with the Group with a farr value in the counterparties’ favour if the Group were

to default Posttive and negative replacement values on different transactions are only netted if there is a legal nght of set-off the
transactions are with the same counterparty and the cashflows will be settled on a net basis Changes in replacement vatues of
dervative Instruments are recogrised in trading iIncome unless they qualify as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes

The Group uses the following dervative financial instruments for both trading and hedging purposes

= Forward contracts and futures — contractual cbligatians to buy or selt financial instruments on a future date at a specified price
Forward contracts are OTC contracts whereas futures are exchange traded derwvatives.

= Interest rate swaps — transactions in which two partes exchange interes: cashflows on a specified notional amount for a
predetermined period Most swaps are OTC instruments Interest rate swap contracts generally entall the contractual exchange
of fixed and floating rate interest payments n a single currency

s Options ~ contractual agreements under which the seller granis the purchaser the right but not the obligation to buy or sell by
or at a future date a specified quantity of a financial Instrument at a predeterrruned price The purchaser pays a premium to the
seller for this right. Options may be transacted OTC or on a regulated exchange I

Derwatives may be transacted for hedging or trading purposes.The Group enters into dervative transactions primarily for the
purpose of hedging exposures in the non-trading book. The accounting treatment of hedge transactions depends on the nature
of the hedging refationship and whether the hedge qualifies as such for accounting purposes Dervative transactions may qualify
as hedges for accounting purposes as erther far value or cash flow hedges Trading invoives taking positions with the intention of
profiung from changes in market vanables such as interest rates
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14. Derivatives (continued)
Fair Value Hedges

The Group's farr value hedges consist of nterest rate swaps that are used to protect aganst changes in the fair value of fixed rate
lending, fixed rate debt securities and fixed rate borrowing

The farr value of derwvatives designated as far value hedges at 31 March 2012 was £16,334,000 (201 [ loss of £2060000) Far value
gains of £16,833,000 (2011 losses of £6,484,000) on derwatives held in qualfying far value hedging relationships are included in net
trading ncome Far value losses of £17,052000 (2011 gains of £6,394000), which relate to changes in far value of hedged iterns
attributable to the hedged risk. are also included in net trading income

Cash Flow Hedges

The Group s exposed to vanability n future interest cash flows on non-trading assets and issued debt securities which recewe or
pay interest at variable rates

Gains and losses on the effective porton of interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive
income Gans or losses on any ineffective portion of these swaps are recognised immediately in the iIncome statement

No profit or loss was recognised in the income statement in respect of the ineffective portion of cash flow hedges (2011 £0)

The farr value of dervatives designated as cash flow hedges at 31 March 2012 was £4 565000 (2011 gain of £3,504000) At 31
March 2012 an unrecogrised far value gain of £2,655,000 (201 | gain of £499 000} associated with these derivatives has remained
deferred in shareholders’ equity and will be transferred to the income statement when the hedged cashflows affect profit or loss
Amounts relating to cash flow hedges transferred to the income statement during the penod are included n net trading income

The schedule of cash flows hedged 1s as follows

<\lyr 1-3 yrs 3-5yrs 5-10 yrs > 10yrs
Group and Company £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000 £'000
As at 31 March 2012
Cash inflows (assets) 827 139 - - -
As at 31 March 201 |
Cash inflows (assets) 1,390 3107 - - -
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[4. Derivatives (continued)

Notional principal

Positive fair value

Neganve far value

2012 2001 2012 201t 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Group
Conzracts held for nsk management purposes
Derivatives designated as hedges
Fair value interest rate swaps 821733 1 152,006 18,480 9675 (2 146) (11735)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 175000 191937 4565 3909 - {5)
Oth"er &ern"ratw;s held for rnsk"mana"gemer;t purpc;se; ) ’ ) ’ ’ h
Interest rate swaps - 10,000 - - - (37)
OTC nterest rate optons 11671 12,378 - tH - -
1,008,404 | 366,321 23,045 13,595 (2,146} (11,777)
Contracts held for wading purposes
Ferward foreign exchange contracts 414356 144,606 997 2100 (11 (1795)
Interest rate swaps 26912 25388 1,028 1,035 {1029 (1003)
Exchange traded mterest rate futures “ 569 5604 o -
Other - 4421 - 357 - -
446 897 180,01% 2072 3,549 (2220) (2798}
1,455,301 | 546,340 25117 17,144 (4.366) {14.575)
Company
Contracts held for nsk management purposes
Derivauves designated as hedges
Fair value interest rate swaps 821,733 1152006 18,480 9675 (2.146) {11735)
Cash flow interest rate swaps 175 000 191937 4,565 3909 - (5
Oth;r ;en;au;;; h;l—d f-or risk ma—nagem—en; purpo-;es oo T e e e m
OTC interest rate options 1167 12,378 - I - -
1008 404 1,356,321 23,045 13595 (2.146) {11 740)
Contracts held for trading purposes
Forward foreign exchange contracts 414,356 144,606 957 2100 {1,190 {1 795}
Interest rate swaps 6912 25388 (028 1035 (1029  {1003)
Exchange iraded mterest rate fitures 5629 5604 47 11 - -
Other [ T
446,897 180,019 2,072 3549 (2 220) (2.798)
1,455,301 1,536,340 25117 17,144 (4.,366) {14.538)
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I5. Other Assets

2012 2012 2011 201
Group Company Group Company
£000 £000 £000 £'000
Accounts recevable and prepayments 113,206 84,901 116349 89,039
Accrued income 23300 14298 24282 15475
Other ) 8775 5095 11066 7485
145,281 104,294 IS] 697 111,999
Accounts recervable are net of allowances of £3 420,000 (2011 £3 306,000)
[6. Investments in Associates
2012 200
Group £'000 £000
Ac | Apnil 40,121 37,763
Additions 906 2043
Dsposls T ) C s G
Share of results (r;et of tax) ’ ) 3514 T 920
Gamns from changes in farr value R 711 ) -
Dwdends S - ) Qs (149
Exchange d:fferénce; ) ) o o ) ) (7:36) 418
At 31 March 38510 40,121
The Group's interests in its pnncipal associated undertakings which are unfisted, are as follows
2012 2011
Groups share of £000 £000
Assels 120286 12136
Liabiities N } N } BL776 12015
Revenues ) - 25120 2799
Resufts (netof ta R T

The Company holds a 9 38 per cent interest in Rothschild & Cie Banque, a French imited partnership, in which the Company
exercises a significant influence, which cames out banking actvities in France

The Company also holds a 500 per cent nterest n Quintus European Mezzaruine Fund Limited Partnership, a Jersey imited
partnership that 1s an investment vehucle for institutional Investors Substantive ‘kick out” nghts granted 10 other interest holders
mean overall control of the fund does not rest with the Company and the investment continues to be classified as an wvestment
In an assooate

The Group's interests In assotiates are held by the Company at historical cost of £36 611,000 (2011 £39,208.000)

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279 | Page 73



Notes to the Financial Statements

{forming part of the Financial Statements)

I7. Investments in Joint Ventures

The Group holds a 500 per cent interest n N M Rothschild Europe Partnership, an English partnerstup, and a 500 per cent interest
in Rothschild Europe SNC, a French partnership These partnerships undertake financial advisory activities in continental Eurcpe
and are accounted for as jointly controlled entries In accordance with IAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures using the proportionate
consolidation method The Group's share of assets, liabilties, Income and expenses of the partnerships is as follows

2012 2001
£000 £000
Current assets 7881 10983
Current labihties 4252 5794
Income— o o I S T T 5.4I5- o ) 6,496
Expenses 7,008 7965
18. Intangible Assets
Other
intangible
Goodwill assets Total
Group £000 £'000 £000
Cost at | Apnl 2011 14,778 | 000 15778
Acquisiion of subsidiary underta;ang o S - o 8154 T 8154
At 3| March 2012 14,778 9,154 23932
Accumulated amortisation at | Aprd 201 | - 875 875
Amortisation charge - 426 o 426
At 31 March 2012 - 1,301 1 301
Net book value at 3| March 2012 14778 7,853 22,631
Cost at | Apnl 2010 14478 1,000 15478
Addtions o " ZCTTT T
Ax 31 March 2011 14,778 1 000 15,778
Accumulated amortisation at 1. Apnl 2010 - 775 775
Amorusation charge u - ’ 100 o ) |06
At 31 March 2011 - 875 875
Net book value at 31 March 2011 14778 125 14,903

Included wrthin goodwill as at 3| March 2012 s £9,786,000 (201t £9,786000) relaung to the purchase of Lanebndge Investment
Management Limited in the year ended 31 March 2008 in assessing impairment of goodwill, the Group has used the latest forecasts
of Lanebndge Investment Management Limrted for the penods to March 2017 A discount rate of 10 per cent (2011 10 per cent)
was apphed to the forecast cashflows The resuits of the sensitvity analysis performed durng the course of the revew, which includes
assumptions regarding the tming and value of property szles, have provided sufficient assurance that the goodwill 1s not impaired The
remainder of goodwill relates to varous acquisions within the Five Arrows Leasing Group

During the year, the Group acquired the entire caprtal of Elgin Capital LLF, a company that prowides investment management
services for various investment funds The present value of the future servicing rights has been recognised at acquisiion and will be
amortised over the servicing penod as the fees from servicing are recogrised
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment

Leasehold  Cars, fixtures and Computer

Improvements fitengs equipment Total
Group £000 £'000 £000 £000
Costat | Apnl 201 | 29,682 24521 25092 79295
Addvons ) 27830 3492 8544 39866
Disposals ’ g e oy (16523)
Exchange diflerences T Tuay T oy @8N
At 31 March 2012 50,192 18951 33014 102,257
Accumulated depreciauon at | Apnl 2071 10631 14,184 ) 22,751 47 566
Disposals ) @79 8012) (418) (15 609)
Depreciatian charge 2792 2950 1,634 7416
Exchange differences @7) 84) 7 (252}
Ac 31 March 2012 5,147 9,078 23,896 39,121
Net book value at 31 March 2012 44,045 9873 9,218 63136
Cost at | Apnl 2010 16222 22923 24802 63947
Addtions T T T EE: S v u I.6_42 T IEE.T-TS
Osposals S Y ¢ N 01~ S c V11
Acquisition of sl;bmdla:): ur;dertakmugs - i T _27 S i —I; i ; "39 _ 77
Exchange difierences Q) 137 (26) (08
At 31 March 2011 29,682 24,521 25,092 79295
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2010 8096 12965 22932 43993
Disposals - (1412) {1364 (2776)
Depreciatron charge 2516 2,599 1205 6320
Exchange differences ) ) . u u 19 o -3{ (il) ) o 29
At 31 March 2011 10,631 14184 22,751 47566
Net book value at 31 March 2011 19051 10,337 1341 31729

Included within the net book value of cars, fixtures and fitings for the Group as at 31 March 20215 £5,266,000 (2011 £6,054.000)
relating to assets leased to customers under operating leases
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

Leasehold  Cars fixtures and Computer
Improvements fitungs equipment Total
Company £'000 £'000 £000 £000
Cost at | Apnl 201 | 26451 6328 20207 52996
Addiions 27809 290 1,806 35905
Drsposals ) ) i e (239) (12828)
At 3) March 2012 47 081 | 208 27784 76,073
Accumulated deprecauon at | Apnl 2011 8831 6054 18840 33725
Disposals ) gy a0 " (2828)
Depreaation charge 2377 191 1,046 3614
At 3] March 2012 4,029 835 19 647 24511
Net book value at 31 March 2012 43052 373 8137 51,562
Costat | Apni 2010 13538 6218 19882 39638
Addrtl—ons - ) |29|3‘ 110 1248 1427
Disposals - - (213) {213)
Ax 31 March 201 | 26,451 6,328 20,217 5299
Accumulated depreciation at | Apnl 2010 6,767 5931 19,153 3185¢
Disposals - - 11 o)
DeprEClai\o;l charge o ’ u 22)64u u o I2u3 R 598 ) i.?éS
At 31 March 2011 8831 6,054 18,840 33725
Net book value at 31 March 2011 17,620 174 1,377 19271
20. Debt Securities in Issue
2012 2012 2011 0110
Group Company Group Compary
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Medum term floating rate nates 58355 - 367338 -
Certificates of depost i issue 83,365 83,365 93413 93413
141,720 83,365 460,751 931413

Medium term notes are 1ssued under the Group’s Euro Medium Term Note programme The notes are 1ssued at a floating rate
of interest and had a residual maturrty of less than | month as at 3f March 2012 (20! | between 6 months and | year | month)
Certificates of deposit 1ssued by the Company had residual matunity dates of less than | month as at 31 March 2012 (201} | year

| month} and are 1ssued at a fixed rate of interest
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21. Other Liabilities

2612 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
Note £000 £ 000 £000 £000
Accounts payable 12926 12,869 54,503 54446
Defined benefit pension habilties 23 98585 97,341 50841 49,588
Qther labifities 27599 1,800 23664 5777
139,110 12,010 129.008 103811
22. Deferred Income Taxes
Deferred taxes are calculated cn all temporary differences under the hability method using an effective tax rate of 24 per cent
(2011 26 per cent)
The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as follows
12 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At | April 85,971 72,625 PL773 99,191
Recognised in income
Income statement (charge)/credit {6807 (3.802) (11733) {12407)
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Defined benefit pension arrangements 12,359 12,450 (10241) {10267}
Available-for-sale securties
- Fair value measurement 151 17 (3,249) (3,234)
Cash flow hedges ’
— Fair value measurement (508) (508) (658} (658)
Exchange differences (95) - 283 -
Other 7143 7.358 {204y -
At 31 March 98,214 88,140 85,971 72,625
Deferred tax assets are attributable to the following tems
2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Campany
£000 £000 £00¢ £1000
Accelerated tax depreciation 13311 6137 10,037 59011
Deferred profit share arrangements 29,340 24312 33,137 25383
Pension and o—ther post—reilrement benefits 23889 23889 14,16% 14,034
Avallable-for-sale securities 17,605 17,884 17,292 17
Taxlosses o 15525 1492 8368 8368
Cther temporary differences | 54:1 9%6 2968 2, I—24
98,214 88 140 85,971 72625
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22. Deferred Income Taxes (continued)

The deferred tax (charge}/credit In the Income statement compnses the following temporary differences

2012 2012 2011 2011

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £000

Accelerated tax depreciation 274 1,126 80y 316
Deferred profit share anangen';ents (3.220) (1071) (12421) {13,575)
Avallable-forsale secunities 162 ’ vl 62 .IBB I8-3
Pensions and other post-retirement benefits (2595) (2.595) (911 (1925)
Tax losses ) (804) (804) 3269 3289
Other temporary dfferences ’ (624) (620) @73 {695)
(6,807) {3802} (11,733) (12 407)

Deductible temperary differences relating to unutilised tax losses within the Group for which no deferred tax asset has been
recognised are £nil (2011 £465000)

Deferred tax labilites have not been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earmngs of certain subsidiaries and other interests as it 1s anticipated that such profits would qualify for exemmption from UK taxation
The amount of witholding taxes that would be payable should the retained earmings be rermitted would be £41 1,000 (2G11 £209 000)

23. Retirement Benefit Obligations

Defined benefit pension plans and other post-retirement benefits

The Company 1s a member of a group persion scheme, the NMR Pension Fund {“the Fund”} which 1s operated by the Company
for the benefit of employees of certain Rothschild group companies in the United Kingdom The Fund comprises 2 defined benefit
section, which closed to new entrants in Aprit 2003 and a defined contnbution schemne established with effect from April 2003 The
Company has unfunded ablgations in respect of pensions and other post-retrement benefits

The Group and the Company have adopted the rewisions to I1AS |19 which were published in December 2004 Actuanal gans

and losses are recogmised n full in the period In winch they oceur, outside the ncome statemert through the statement of
comprehensive ncome

The latest formal actuarial valuation of the Fund was carmed out as at 31 March 2010 and has been updated for IAS 1% purposes
ta 31 March 2042 by qualified independent actuaries As required by LAS 19, the vafue of the defined benefit obligation and current
service cost have been measured using the projected unit credit method

in Juty 2010 the UK Government announced 1ts intention that future statutory minimum pension indexation would be measured
by the Consumer Prices !ndex Deferred pensions will therefore also be indexed up to retirement in ne with the Consumer Prices
Index in future This has been reflected i the Company's assumptions and a gain of £14 mullion was recognised in the year to

31 March 201 |as a resutt, included in “Actuaria! (gains)/losses” in the figures below

The Company had previously augmented certain early revrement benefits but this has ceased folowing recent changes to pensions tax
relef in the UK The effect of this change was included as a £2 5 milkon credit to the income statement i the year to 31 March 2011 as
a past service cost.

Page 78 | N M Rothschild & Sons Limited | Registered Number 925279




Notes to the Financial Statements

(forming part of the Financial Statements)

23. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The principal actuanal assumptions used as at the balance sheet date were as follows

Group and Company 012 011 2010
Discount rate 480% 550% 560
Retail pnce inflation . 330% 350% ’ 370%
Consumer pr;ce |r;flau—c~n i ”2 u30§6 2.80% nfa
Expected rate of salary increases - o 430% 450% 470%
Expected rate of increase in pensions In payment ) ) o
Capped at 5 0% per annum 3 2_0% N 340% 360%
Capped at 25% perannum _ o 220% 230% 240%
Life expectancy of a pensioner aged 60 - S
Male 278 278 273
Female ’ ST T s 284 91
ufe @c[:)ectancy of a future pensioner aged 60 n 20 years bme S
Male 294 293 294
Female B ) 293 292 304
Movement In defined benefit oblrgation

2012 2012 2014 2011t

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £000
At | Apni 507 149 505,896 511,578 509,876
Cur;ent service cost {net of contnbutions T . ’
paid by other plan participants) 3020 2871 4043 3952
Current service cost relating to other plan partigipants T 1652 1,652 930 i 930
Interest cost . T T 273m 27,384 28,288 " 28228
Actuana) losses/(gans) 55824 ss823  (19331) (19422)
Benefits pad ) o (4s751)  (1955) (15632) (s5)
Past service Costs ’ o T 195 sy @s13)
Exchange differences T ) o 41 - i Eil4i o -
At 31 March 575514 574,270 507,149 505,894
Movement In plan assets

2012 012 el 2011

Group Company Group Company

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1 April 456,308 455,308 422,803 422,803
Epecedrenamonpmases T T T T 0 T s iy T T
Actualless expected retum on assets (6399) ¥ e Y !
Combomms by e Grop L Ts T TTiese T T e o
Contnbutions by other pkzn parbepants T T T e e 930 930
Bemefspad 77T 0T Ty (1955)  (15155) (i5155)
At 31 March 476929 476,929 456,308 456,308
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23. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

At 31 March, the fair value of plan assets comprised

2012 2011

Group and Company £ 000 £'000
Equibes 162086 184 145
Bonds ) o T 70515 72844
Gilts and cash i i 111289 i 965738
Property S 1989 1961
Hedge funds T ) 45965 36,089
PFl prvate equity and infrastructure. o 85085 64431
476929 456,308

The expected return on assets for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 was 64 per cent pa (201 | 68 per cent) The rate of
return 15 derved from the weighted average of the long term expected rates of return on the asset classes in the Trustees’ intended
long term investment strategy A deduction was then made fror the expected return on assets for the expenses incurred in

runring the Fund
The actual return on plan assets in the year was £21 6 million 2011 £355 millon)

Amounts recognlsed n ncome statement.

2012 2012 2011 2011
Group Company Group Company
Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Current service cost 3020 287i 4043 3952
Interest cost ) ) ) 27384 27384 28288 28228
Expected retum on plan assels ST o Q7963) @963 (1137) Q7137)
Past service costs o T 7T Tss T T Ties T sy @2513)
Total (included in staff costs) 9 1636 2,487 2,681 2,530
Amounts recognised in the balance sheet for current and previous four perods are as follows.
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £'000
Group
P[esim_t_value of fund obhgauons 572052 503906 507808 351751 B 415210
Far value of plan assets ) (476929)  (456308)  (422803)  (38807)  (422764)
95,123 47,598 85,005 22,944 (7.554)
Present value of unfunded obigaions 3462 3243 3770 3986 2214
Balance sheet habiliy/{asset) 98,585 5084| 88,775 26,930 (5 340)
Company
E’r_‘gf_n-—t \El_ue~ _q[ fElJ?_?PJl_g.a_UEI’Ii_. 572052 5(23 906 507 808 351754 415210
Far value of plan assets T T T T T a76929) | (456308)  (422803)  (328807) (422.764)
L . 95123 _17.598 85 005 22944 M(Zzéﬂ)
Present value of unfunded obligations ’ i o "5 iTé T 1,39'5"" - —2-.06-5; ————— - | 902- - 2214
Balance sheet lability/(asset) 97,341 49,588 87073 24 846 (5.340)
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23. Retirement Benefit Obligations (continued)

The experience adjustments arising on the plan assets and liabilities were as follows

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Group
Actual less expected return on assets (6399) 8373 69,327 (113,472) 3 h(33 138)
Expenence gains and losses ansing on kabilities u(? 537) (6034) 2,362 a4 (2,"982)
Company
Actual less expected return on assets (6,399) 8373 69,327 (113472) ) (33138)
Expenence gains and losses ansing on Iuabllztles (7.537) (6034 2362 444~ (2982)

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income

2012 2012 2011 001

Group Company Group Company

£000 £000 £000 £'000

Actuanal (losses)/gains recognised in the year (62224) (62.222) 27704 27795
Curnulatve actuanal losses recogrised in the statement of

comprehensive Income (162,965} (162985) (100741) (100763}

It 15 estimated that total contnbutions of £157 million will be pad to the Fund in the year ending 31 March 2013, of which it 1s
estimated that the Company will pay £14 2 mill:on

The highest pard director was not a member of the defined benefit pension scheme

Defined contribution schemes

012 2012 200 2011

Group Company Group Company

Note £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Contnbutions pad 9 4094 2059 4,467 2,735

These amounts represent contributions to the defined contribution section of the Fund and other defined contribution
pension arrangements
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24. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments

2012 2012 200 2011
Group Company Group Company
£'000 £000 £000 £000
Guarantees
Guarantees and irrevocable letters of credit 8213 192316 $083 505038
Commitments
Undrawn formal standby facilities, credit lines and other
commitrents to lend 47,840 62092 24415 55003

From time to tme the Group 1s nvolved in judicial proceedings or receves ctams arising from the conduct of its business Based
upon avallable information and where appropriate legal advice, the directors do not believe that there are any potential or actual
proceedings or other clams which will have a material adverse impact on the Groups {inancial positicn

Assets pledged

2012 2011
Group and Company £'000 £000
Investment secunties 32,311 79159

Assets are pledged as security over Euroclear overdraft facilities and as collateral to secure habiliies under sale and repurchase
agreements and borrowing faciities These transactions are conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard
lending and securtties borrowing and lending activties

25. Operating Lease Commitments

At 31 March 2012, the Group was obligated under a number of non-cancellable operating leases for premises used primarily for
business purposes The significant premises [eases usually Include renewal options and escafation clauses in ine with general office
rental market condrtions

Minimum commitments for non-canceilable leases of premises and equipment are as follows

Land and Buildings Other

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Upto | year 14425 15834 234 353
Between | and § years o T T Tsame 0 am w28
More than Syers T 20808 213616 T T T
76271 281718 565 561

Company
Upto | year - Jousr 09 = -
Between | and 5 years L o 40585 o ;3:3'"4 ) . - T
More than Syears T T T Teres T 199815 - -
248,170 249 125 - -

Operating expenses include operating lease rentals of £16,798,000 (2011 £13,781,000}
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26. Distributions

2012 001
£000 £ 000
Other Eguity Interests
Perpetual floatng rate subordinated koan (US$100 milhon) 575 570
Perpetual fixed rate subordinated loan (£75 mition) T S 6780 6762
Perpetual floating rate subordlna—ted notes Z€ I—5~0 m|||]0n) ) ) 4817 o n4.-4“93
12,172 11825
Tax credit thereon T ) {3165) o (3§I—I)
2,007 8514
Ordinary Shares
Dmdends paid 18000 25000
27,007 33514

The dvidends per ordinary share were 31p (2011 43p)

27 Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnise the following balances with an onginal maturrty of
less than three months

2012 2012 2011 011

Group Company Group Company

£000 £'000 £ 000 £'000

Cash and balances at central banks 543038 543025 646 535 . {:16 52}
Loans and advances to banks 151730 91834 370397 292,357
694,768 634,859 1,016,932 938,860

28. Transactions with Related Parties

Group
Transactions with key management persennel (and their connected persons) of the Group are as follows

2012 011
At 3| March £'000 £'000
leans ) 3 2
Deposits | 404 908

Key management personnel are the directors of the Company and of parent compantes

Loans are made to directors for the purchase of travel season tickets and are prowided on an interest-free basis Deposits are taken
on normal commercial terms
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28. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

2H2 2011
£'000 £000
Key management personnel compensation

Short term employee benefits ) 5739 8,224
Post-retirement benefits | 2_0
Other long term employee benefits 2567 3,005

Amounis recervable from related parties of the Group are as follows

2012 2014

Loans and Other Loans and Crther
advances assats advances assers
At 31 March £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Amounts due from parent companies 37650 290 34318 605
Amounts due from jaint ventures ; 21 204 - -
Amounts due from assooated undertakings - _ 6976 - 9566
Amounts due from ather related parties 5956 26908 6,766 22949

Orher related parties are fellow subsidiaries of Rothschild Concordia SAS

Amounts recenvable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parties n respect of expenses incurred
on their behalf and services provided Loans are made in the crdinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as
comparable transactions with third parties

Amounts payable to related parties of the Group are as follows

2012 2011

Perpetual Other Perpetual Other

Deposits instruments liabiwes  Deposits instruments habthues

At 31 March £000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000

Amounts due to parent companies e - 130 12,907 - 129

Amounts due to joint ventures o 5087 - - 7,543 - -

Amounts due 10 assoclated undertakings - - 5464 - - 9712

Amounts due to pension funds 1551 - _ | 1,343 - 1
Amounts due to other related parties

- subordinated - 7610 - - 72610 -

- other 218924 - 5002 194,127 - 2,672

Armounts payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances hetd in the ordinary course of business and on substanually
the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Guarantees from related parties of the Group are as follows

2012 2011
At 31 March £000 £'000
QGuarantees received from other related parues 54,672 54033

The Group has recerved guarantees from a fellow subsidwary of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer loans and
avalable-forsale securtties
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28. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Amounts recogrised in the incorne statement of the Group in respect of related party transactions are as follows

Paren: Joine Associated Pension  Other related

comparies ventures  undercakings funds parties Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £'000

2012
Interest recevable 1073 - - - 27 1100
interest payable a9 (28) (35) N (1261) (13749)
Fees and commussions r;celvable 5000 - ’ 7,800 ’ - 3,062 15,862
Fees and commsssions payable . (3551) (5.700) - pen (18925)
Dmdend income 706 - 2509 - loss 4273
Rent payable - T - - (8984) (8984)
Recoverable expenses i - ) Qi - T oss: 5397

2011
Interest recesvable 938 - } - - 39 977
Interest payable @3 8 - 25) (10%9) (1 145)
Fees and comrmissions re"cewable ) - - 14,524 - 3515 18039
Fees and commissians payable - 4600)  (6937) T (9.805) Q134)
Dridend income o Tss s | 496 L 3359
Rent payable ) - . N - (7 167) .167)
Recoverable expenses ) - 7 {1.547) - 3528 1981

Fees and comrmissions recenvable/payable relate to transactions where the Group has worked in collaboration with refated parties
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28. Transactions with Related Parties (continued)

Company
Amounts receivable from refated parties of the Company are as follows
2011
Loans and QOther Loans and Other
advances assets advances assets
Ac 31 March £000 £'000 £'000 £000
Amaounts due from parent companes 37,650 290 34318 605
Ameunts due from subsidiary undertakings L 97960 10489 79975 13456
Amaunts due from joint ventures - A7 ... -
Amaunts due from associated undertakings - 3075 - 4,130
Amounts due from other related parties 5956 26817 6751 22946

Amaounts recevable include loans to related parties and amounts recoverable from related parties in respect of expenses incurred
on ther behalf and services prowvided Loans are made in the ordinary course of business and on substantially the same terms as

comparable transactions with third parties

Amcunts payable to related parties of the Company are as follows

2012 2011
Perpetual Other Perpetual Other
Deposits  mstruments liabilrties Deposits  instruments liabilities
At 31 March £'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000 £000
Amounits due to parent companies 100 - 130 12,907 - 129
Ar;ioums c"iue to SleSldlan.r)f underialangs o )
- subordinated - 51725 - - 51,725 -
- ther ) S PYL - 6893 37374 - 40
Amounts"due to joint vent:Jres ’ 10174 - - ’ Igbﬁﬁ i Z -
A"mc:ums due to assocated undertakings - - I 609 . - - 3506
Am_oums du:a to pension funds i o I,SE;J T - i | 1,343 - |
Amounts due to other rel—ated part—lzas ) B ) T
- subordinated ) . - 72610 ) - - 72610 -
- other 28924 - 3770 194127 - 2672

Amounts payable consist of deposits taken and bank account balances held in the ordinary course of business and on substanually

the same terms as comparable transactions with third parties

Guarantees made on behalf of and received from related parties of the Company are as follows

002 2011
At 31 March £'000 £000
Guarantees made on behaff of subsidiary undertakings 183404 499,958
Guarantees recerved from other related partes 54672 54033
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28. Transactions with Related Parties {continued)

Company (contunued)

The Company has guaranteed £125,048:000 (2011 £132,620000) of perpetual floating rate subordinated notes and £58,355.000
(201 | £367 338,000} of medum term notes 1ssued by Rothschilds Continuation Finance PLC The ssue proceeds have been placed
on deposit with the Company on terms similar to those of the notes ssued

The Company has receved guarantees from 2 fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concordia SAS in respect of certain customer loans
and avallable-for-sale securities

2012 2011
At 3| March £'000 £'000
Undrawn credit commitmenis 14,252 30588

Commitments provided to related parties of the Company are as follows

The Company has entered into a lease agreement with a fellow subsidiary of Rothschild Concerdia SAS for the rental of office
space The lease agreement expires in 2035 and 1s on normal commercial terms

Amounits recogrised in the income statement of the Company « respect of related party transactions are as follows

Orther
Parent  Subsidary Joint  Associated Pension relaged
companies undertakings ventures undertakings funds parues Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
2002
Interest recenvable 1073 3,224 - - - 27 4324
Interest payable G eI " (5%) -y (1261) (4758)
fees and commusstons recervable i i 5:000 736 - ! OII" ) - 30_62 9819
Fees and commissions payable - (6527) 7102) (50813 - (5674)  (18384)
Owidend income 706 18300 - - 1058 22573
Rent payable [ - - - - (e9s4) (8984)
Recoverable expenses - (3451 T a4 - eom 3365
2011
Interest recervable . R 938 . 313 - - - ) 3_9 _4L I"08
inierest payable ) 33) (3926) &) - @s)  (1059) (5.098)
Fees and commissions recenable - 4186 - a3 - 3515 12072
Feesand commissons payable - (10284 (9200} (1092) - ©805)  (3338))
Owdendwcome 525 22,153 - a7 - L7 253@2
Rent payable N A1/ B (A )
Recoverable experses T T T ey - T T 3w ams)

Fees and commissions recenvablefpayable relate to transactons where the Company has worked n coflzboration with other group companies.
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29. Non-controlling Interests

2042 2011

£000 £000

AclApnl ) 3 ) g1 28,354

Profit attrbutable to non"-cgntrpl—imng nterests 6 892 ) 4592

Actuanal losses L ) 3 (50} (I5)

Dmdends o ) (5269} (13.810)

Exchange T g (983)

At 31 March 18,593 18,138

30. Share Capital

2012 2011

Authonsed 199 900000 199 900 000

Alotted called up and fuly paid ordinary shares of £1 each 57654551 57654551
31. Perpetual Instruments

2012 2012 2011 2001

Group Company Group Group

£1000 £000 £000 £1000

Perpetual Fixed Rate Subordinated Notes 9% (£75 million) 48750 48,750 48750 48750

Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (€150 mfion) T s 51725 51,725 51725

Perpetual Floating Rate Subordinated Notes (US$100 milkon) ) 23,860 23860 83860 23860

At 31 March 124,335 124,335 124335 124,335
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32. Principal Subsidiary Undertakings

The principat subsidiary undertakings of the Company are detaled below All the principal subsidiary undertakings are registered
in England and Wales except where otherwise indicated The Company's remaining subsidiary undertakings are not matenal and
accordingly no disclosure has been made in respect of these entities

Percentage held

Five Arrows Leasing Group Lirmited {Lease portfoho managemennt) o 100
Five Arrows Leasing Limited (Asset finance} ) ) o _ 1o
State Securities Plc (ﬁ:sset finance) 100
Specialst Fleet Services Finance Limited (Centract hll‘; and mam_tenance) B . ) 100
Rothschilds Contmuau:)n Finance PLC (Finance company) 100
Lanebndge Investment Management Limited {Property arrvestme-nt management) : ; } 100
Elgin Capital LLP (Investment fund management services) 100
Rothschild Europe BY (Financial adwisory company ~ ln—cc—ero;at;d in the Netherlands), —50
which owns the following subsidianes: }

Rothschild GmbH (Financal advisory company — incorporated in Germarny) 100

Rathschild SpA (Financial adwisory company — incorporated in Italy) 3 ) 90

RCF Polska sp. zo o (Financal adwisory company - incorporated i Poland) o 100 3

Rothschild Portugal Liritada (Financial adwisory co;n;mn‘; = incorporated n Ponugap n 100

RCF (Russia) BV {Financal advisory company ~ incorporated in Russia} 100 )

Rothschild SA (Financial advisory company - mcorporated in Spain) ) 98

Rothschild (M\ddlf East} Limited {Financal adwisory c-ompan;r — incorporated in buba:) o o 100
Rothschild Aa—Js;.ralna L|m|te~d~ (~F|nanc|al adwisary company - incorporated n Australiay ) 100
Arraw Capitat Limited {Investment holding compa—rv—— incorporated in Australa) 100

The historical cost of the rwestments in subsidrary undertakings was £43 547000 (2011 £43,547,000)

On 17 August 2011 the Group acquired Rothschild Credit Management Limited, Elgin Capital LLP and Elgin Caprtal Services
Limited The acquistion was financed in part by ¢ash conaderation and in part by deferred and contingent consideration £1 65m of
the consideration 1s deferred, payable n 4 instalments over a period of 20 manths A maximum of £6 ém will be paid, being 50% of
net subordinated fees earned post acquisition The total deferred and contingent consideration s discounted at the rate of 12%.

The acquisttion had the following effect on the Groups assets and labilities.

£000
Loa[ls and advances to banks } . o 695
Avallable-forsale financal assets ) ST o T S : . 132
Debrors T - T T
Credtors ] T . @8)
otangble asses T 8154
Net assets acquired L o 878l
Léss Contingent/deferred cons:derauon“ T o i ~(6 43‘3)
Cash outflow on acquisibon 2,348

From the date of acquistion to 31 March 2012, the acquismon contributed £1,358,000 to operating mcome and £76,000 to profit
before tax, If the acquisiuon had been made at the beginning of the financial year, £2,345,000 would have been contnbuted to
operating income and £427,000 to profit before tax.
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33. Parent Undertaking and Ultimate Holding Company

The largest group in which the results of the Company are consohdated 1s that headed by Rothschid Concordia SAS, incorporated
in France The smallest group in which they are consolidated 15 that headed by Paris Orléans SA regstered in France The accounts

are avallable on Paris Oriéans’ web-site at www paris-orleans com

On 8 June 2012, Paris Crléans SA, a French public imried lability corporation, converted to Pans Qrléans SCA, a French public

lwmited partnership At the same time, Rothschild Concordia SAS ceased to control Pans Orléans From this date, both the largest

and the smallest group 10 which the results of the Company are consohdated wall be Panis Orléans SCA

34. Remuneration of Directors

112 2011

£000 £000
Directors emoluments ) 1,799 3326
Amounts recervable under long term profit share schemes 422 642

2,221 3,968
Pension contnbutions to money purchase schemes - 18

2221 3,986
The emoluments of the highest paid director were £1,085,000 (2011 £1 537 000}

2012 2011

Retirement benefits are accruing to the following number of directors under

Money purchase schemes -

Defined benefit schemes -
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Australia

Rothschild Austraha Limited

Level 41,50 Bndge Street
Sydney, NSW 2000, Australia
Telephone +61 {0)2 9323 2000
Facsimite +&1 (0)2 9323 2040

Level 21, 120 Colins Street .
Melbourne, Victoria 3000, Australia
Telephone +61 (0)3 9656 4600
Facsimile +61 (0)3 9656 4950

Belgium

Rothschild Belgique

Succursale de Rothschitd & Cie Banque
Avenue Lousse, 166

1050 Bruxelles

Telephone +32 (0)2 627 77 30
Facsimile +32 (0)2 627 77 59

Brazil

Rothschild (Brasil) Ltda

Av Brigadero Fana Lima 2055

| 8th Floor, Jardim Paulistano
01451-000 S3o Paulo, Brazil
Telephone +55 (C) | | 3039 5828
Facsimile +55 (0}1 1 3039 5826
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Canada

Rothschild (Canada) Limited

1002, rue Sherbrooke Ouest
Bureau 2300, Montréal, Québec
Canada H3A 3Lé

Telephene +1 514 840 1016
Facsimile +1 514 840 1015

Brookfield Place

TD Canada Trust Tower

161 Bay Street, Suite 3150
PO Box 206 Toronto
Ontarto, Canada MSf 251
Telephone +1 416 369 9600
Facsimile +1 416 864 126!

Rothschild Canada Inc

Eigth Avenue Place

1910 525 ~ 8th Avenue SW
Calgary Alberta

CanadaT2F 1Gl

Telephone +1 403 537 6300
Facsimile +1 403 537 6389

Channel Islands

Rothschild Bank International Limited

St Juhan's Court, St julan's Avenue
St Peter Port, Guemsey

Channel lslands GY | 3BP
Telephone +44 (Q)1481 713713
Facaimile +44 (0)1481 727705

Rothschild Bank (CI) Limited

St Julians Court, St. Julian's Avenue
St Peter Port, Guernsey

Channel Islands GY | 3BP
Telephone +44 (0)1481 713713
Facsimile +44 (0)1481 711272

Rothschild Trust Guernsey Limited

St. Peter's House, Le Bordage

St Peter Port, Guemnsey
Channel lslands GY| 6AX
Telephone +44 (0)) 48| 707800
Facsimile +44 (0)1481 712686




Group directory

China

Rothschild China Holding AG

Beying Representative Office

Room 912A Winland International
Finance Center; No 7 Finance Street
Xicheng District, Beyng 100033
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +86 10 6321 2900
Facsimile +86 10 6655 S880

Shangha) Representative Office
Suite 3207, Tower 2, Plaza 66
1266 Nan jing X: Lu Road
Shanghai 200040

People’s Republic of China
Telephane +86 21 6288 1528
Facsimile +86 21 6288 (517

Rothschild (Hong Kong) Limited
Rothschild Wealth Management
(Hong Kong) Limited

16/F Alexandra House

18 Chater Road

Central Hong Keng
People's Republic of China
Telephone +852 2525 5333
Facsimile +852 2868 1728

Rothschild & Sons Financial Advisory
Services (Beipng) Co Ltd

Fel0Winland International

Finance Center, No 7 Finance Street
Xicheng Distnict, Beying 100033
People’s Republic of China
Telephone +8610 6321 2900
Facsumile +8610 6655 5880

France

Rothschild Concordia SAS
Paris Orléans SCA

23 bis avenue de Messine
75008 Pans, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 5377 6510
Facsimile +33 (0)1 4563 8528

Rothschild & Cie Banque

29 avenue de Messine

75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 (0) | 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie

23 bis avenue de Messine
75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 (0)1 4074 9847

Rothschild & Cie Gestion

29 avenue de Messine

75008 Paris, France

Telephone +33 (0)1 4074 4074
Facsimile +33 (0) | 4074 4969

Germany

Rothschild GmbH
Rothschild Vermogensverwaltungs-GmbH

Borsenstralie 2-4

60313 Frankfurt am Main Germany
Telephone +49 (0)69 4080 2600
Facsimile +49 (0)69 4080 2655
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Group directory

India

Rothschild (India) Private Limited

103, Ist Floor, Pramal Tower
Penninsula Corporate Park
Ganpatrao Kadam Marg, Lower Pare!
Mumbas 400 013, India

Tetephone +91 {022 4081 7000
Facsimile +91 (0922 4081 7001

Unit No FI+F2, Ist Floor, Plot No 2
The Grand Hotel, Nelsen Mandela Road
Vasant Kuny, New Delhi — 110 070, India
Telephone +91 (0)11 4922 3009
Facsimile +91 (01 | 4922 3001

Indonesia

PT Rothschild Indonesia

Indonesia Stock Exchange Bullding
Tower |, 15th Floor

lin Jend Sudirman Kav 52-53
Jakarta 12190, Indonesia
Telephone +62 (0321 515 3588
Facsimile +62 (0)2) 515 356%

Israel

Rothschild Israel

Rothschild Bivd 32

Tel Aviv 6688210 lsrael
Telephone +972 72 220 4100
Facsimile +972 72 220 4106

Italy

Rothschild SpA

Via Santa Radegonda 8
20121 Milan, ltaly
Telephone +39 02 7244 3}
Facsimite +39 02 7244 3310

Via S Nicola daTolentino 1/5
00187 Rome, ltaly
Telephone +39 06 4217 01
Facsimile +39 06 4217 0252
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Japan

Rothschild Bank AG

Tokya Representatve Office
20F Kamiyacho MT Building
4-3-20 Toranomon

Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-001(, Japan
Telephone +81 (0)3 5408 8045
Facsmile +81 (0)3 5408 8048

Malaysia

Rothschild Malaysia Sdn Bhd

Letter Box No 42, 25th Floor
UBN Tower, 10, Jalan P Ramfee
50250 Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia
Telephone +603 2687 0966
Facsimite +603 2070 1001

México

Rothschild (México) SA de CV

Campos Eliseos 345-8° piso Polanco
CP 11550 México DF México
Telephone +52 55 5327 1450
Facsmile +52 55 5327 1485

Netherlands

Rothschild Europe BY

Appollolaan 133-135

1077 AR Amsterdam, The Netherlands
Telephone +31 (0)20 570 2916
Facsimile +31 {0320 570 2501




Group directory

Poland Singapore (continued)

RCF Polska sp zo o Rothschild Trust {Singapore) PTE Limited
Warsaw Financial Centre Rothschild Wealth Management

Emin Plater 53 {(Singapore) Limited

00-1 13 Warsaw Poland

Telephone +48 22 540 6400 Rothschild Bank AG

Facsimile +48 22 540 6402 One Raffles Quay, North Tower
| Raffles Quay #10-02
Singapore (48583
Telephone +65 6532 0866
po rtugal Facsimile +65 6532 4166
Rothschild Portugal, Limitada
Calgada do Marqués de Abrantes SOU th Africa

40-1° Esq, 1200-719 Lisbon, Portugal

Telephone +351 (0)21 397 5378

Facsimile +35) {0)21 397 5476 Rothschild (South Africa) (Proprietary) Limited
3rd Floor Oxford Corner, 32z Jellicoe Avenue
Rosebank 2196 South Africa

1 Telephone +27 (0)11 428 3700
RUSSIa Facairmle +27 (0)4 1 447 0967
RCF (Russia) BV
(Representative Office) Spain
Novinsky Passazh (8th Floor)

31 Nowinsky Boulevard Rothschild SA

123242, Moscow, Russia

Telephone +7 495 775 8221 Paseo de la Casteflana 35-3°
Facsimile +7 495 775 8222 28046 Macnd, Span

Telephone +34 21 702 2600
Facaimile +34 51 702 2531

i Awigunda Diagonal, 442-3°1
SI nga PO re 08037 Barcelona, Span
Telephone +34 93 254 7503
Rothschild (Singapore) Limited Facsimile +34 93 254 7504
Cne Rafftes Quay, North Tower
| Raffles Quay, #10-02
Singapore 048583 SWCd €n

Telephone +65 6535 8311
Facsimie +65 6535 8326
Rothschild Nordic AB
Strandvagen 7A, |14 56 Stockholm
Sweden

Telephone +46 (0)8 586 33520
Facsimile +46 {0)8 660 9791
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Switzerland

Rothschild Holding AG
Rothschild Bank AG

Zollikerstrasse 18]

8034 Zurich, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (044 384 71 14
Facsimite +41 (0)44 384 7222

Rothschild Trust (Switzerland) AG

Zollkerstrasse 18!

8034 Zurich, Switzerland
Telephene +41 (0)44 384 7111
Facsimile +41 (0)44 384 7201

Equitas SA

3, rue du Commerce

1204 Geneva, Switzerland
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5900
Facsimile +41 (0)22 818 5901

Rothschilds Continuation Holdings AG
Rothschild Concordia AG

Five Arrows Capital AG

Baarerstrasse 95, Postfach 735

6301 Zug, Switzerfand

Telephone +41 (0)41 720 0680
Facsimile +41 (0)41 720 0683

RTS Geneva SA

3, rue du Commerce

1204 Geneva, Swatzerland
Telephone +41 (0)22 818 5995
Facsimile +41 (0)22 818 5902

Turkey

Rothschild Kurumsal Finansman Hizmetler
Limited Sirket

Akmerkez Rezdans No 14 D 2
Akmerkez Is Merkezi Yani
MNispetrye Caddes 34340 Euler
Istanbul, Turkey

Telephone +90 212 371 0800
Facsimile +50 212 371 0809
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United Arab Emirates

Rothschild Middle East Limited

PO Box 506570

Dubai Interationat Financial Centre
Gate Precinct Bullding 6, Level 7
Dubai, United Arab Emirates
Telephone +971 4 428 4300
Facsimile +971 4 365 3183

Rothschild Europe BY
{(Representative Office)

Office | 14 Bainunah Street 34
Al Bateen, PO Box | 13100

Abu Dhabi, United Arab Ermurates
Telephone +971 2 406 9866
Facsirmile +971 2 406 9810

Rothschild (Qatar) LLC

PO Bex 31316, Al Fardan Office Tower
Office 924, 8-%th Floor, West Bay
Doha, Qatar, Unrted Arab Emirates
Telephone +974 410 1480

Facsimule +974 410 1500

United Kingdom

N M Rothschild & Sons Limited

New Court, 5t. Swithin's Lane
London EC4N BAL, UK
Telephone +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facairmile +44 (0)20 7929 1643

82 King Street

Manchester M2 4WQ, UK
Telephone +44 (0)161 827 3800
Facsimile +44 (03161 835 3789

67 Temple Row

Birrmingham B2 5LS UK
Telephone +44 (0)121 600 5252
Facsimite +44 (0}12) 643 7207

| Park Row

Leeds LS| SNR, UK

Telephone +44 (0)113 200 1900
Facsimile +44 (0} | |3 243 4507




Group directory

United Kingdom (continued)

Rothschild Trust Corporation Limited

New Court, $t Swithins Lane
London EC4N 8AL UK
Telephane +44 (0)20 7280 5000
Facsimile +44 (0)20 7929 5239

Rothschild Wealth Management (UK) Limited

New Court St Swithin's Lane
London EC4N BAL, UK
Telephone +44 (020 7280 5000
Facsirmile +44 (0320 7280 1567

Five Arrows Leasing Group Limited

Heron House, 5 Heron Square
Richmond-upen-Thames

Surrey TW9 1EL, UK

Telephone +44 (020 8334 3900
Facsimile +44 (0}20 8332 1636

United States

Rothschild North America Inc
Rothschild Inc
Rothschild Asset Management Inc

1251 Avenue of the Amencas

515t Floor, Newfork, NY 10020, USA
Telephone +1 (0212 403 3500
Facsimide +1 (0)212 403 3501

Rothschild Inc

1101 Connecticut Avenue NW

Suite 700, Washington DC 20036 USA
Telephone +1 (0202 862 1660
Facswmile +1 (0)202 862 1639

Zimbabwe

MBCA Bank Limited

F4th Floor, Old Mutual Centre
Third Street, Harare, Zimbabwe
Telephone +263 (0)4 701636
Facsimile +263 (0y4 708005
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